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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
BUREAU OF PROCUREMENT

HARRISBURG
January 18, 2007
Subject: RFP ~ Voluntary Benefits
Bid Number: CND0023197
Opening Date/Time: February 13, 2007
Flyer: Addendum #1
To All Bidders:
Clarifications:

1. Calendar of Events — The zip-code for submission of proposal was incotrect. The
Calendar of Events has been changed to reflect the correct zip-code information. The
official address to mail sealed proposals is: Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Forum
Place, 555 Walaut Street, 6™ Floor Bid Room, Harrisburg, PA 17101-1914. Refer to
revised Calendar of Events dated Janvary 18, 2007.

2. Deadline to gubmit questions via email was January 5, 2007. All questions are being
posted, along with approved responses. Subsequent responses to unanswered questions
will be posted to the Department of General Services (DGS) website by close-of-business
Thursday, January 25, 2007.

3. Any questions concerning this bid direct to: Matthew M. Bembenick via email at

mbembenick(@state.pa.us.

IF YOU ARE CHANGING PRICE(S), DO NOT FAX this flyer and/or cover memo; you must
finnish these instructions in a sealed envelope. Please indicate the bid number and opening -
date/time on the outside of the envelope.

Except as clarified and amended by this flyer, the terms, conditions, specifications, and
instructions of the invitation to bid and any previous flyers, remain as originally writien.

Very truly yours,

Syline M. Shingara
Commodity Specialist

Phone: (717) 346-3833
E-mail; sshingara@state.pa.us




CALENDAR OF EVENTS

The Commonwealth will make every effort to adhere to the following scheduie:

Deadline to submit Questions \"ia.em'ail to
mbembenick@state.pa.us Questions must be received no
later than 3 p.m. on January 5, 2007 in order to be accepted.

Potential Offerors

© January 5, 2007
3:00 PM

Preproposal Conference—Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,

Issuing

later than this date.

f

Department of General Services, Bureau of Procurement, 555 Office/Potential |- Januéry 18, 2007
Walnut Street, gt Floor, Conference Room #9, Harrisburg, PA ’ 10:30 AM
. Offerors
17101-1914.
Answers to Potential Offeror questions posted to the DGS
website (http:/;www.dgsweb.state.pa.us/comodimain.asp) no January 25, 2007

Issuing Office

Please maonitor website for all communications regarding the
RFP. :

Potential Offerors |

On-Going

Sea]éd proposal mustbe received at Commonweelth of

- Pennsylvania, Forum Place, 555 Walnut Street, 6“7 Floor Bid

Room, Harrisburg, PA 17101-1814.

| Proposals must be received no later than 1:30 p.m.'on February

18, 2007 in order to be accepted. .

Offerors

February 13, 2007
1:30 PM




Questions for the Commonwealth “RFP CN:00023197, Questions”

1.

What current voluntary benefit programs are offered to eligible employses?

At present, the Commonwealth does not offer any voluntary benefits to
employees. Several independent agencies that use the Commonwealth’s payroll
system offer additional life insurance; these comprise a very small portion of the
total employee base. Another 4,800 employees participate in a union-sponsored
insurance offering. )
Will the State support and provide employees with time to meet with enroliment
counselors o review benefit options?

Group meetings should be held in the following major employmemt areas:
Hearrisburg, Philadelphia, Pittsburgh, Wilkes-Barre/Scranton,
Allentown/Easton, Erie, and Johnstown. One-on-one meetings may be offered
during non-working houtrs, however, the Commonwealth will not provide
facility space for one-on-one meetings.

When will union parhmpat[on be determined?
ATl Commonwealth unions have been notified of the Conunonwealth s intent to
make these benefits available. None have objected to the offering.

Will all benefits (allowable under IRS code) be required to flow through a Section
125 plan?
Ne.

What is the current short term disability program offered to eligible employees?
What is the current sick pay/salary continuation plan?

What is the current LTD plan offered to eligible employees?
No LTD plan is cun'ently offered.

What is the current Employer Paid group life offering?
The employer-provided group life insurance benefit is equal to the amount of an

" employee’s annual salary up to & maximum benefit of $40,000. Insurance

amounts are reduced to 65% of the original amount at age 70, and to 50% at age
75. '

How many ellglbll[ty classes are there?
All permanent full-time employees, and those permanent part-time employees

- who work at least 50% of full-time houxs, will be eligible for the benefits.

How many pay frequencies are there?
The Commonwealth operates on a biweekly payroll system. Approximately one-
half the Commonwealth is paid on a given date, and the other half is paid one

week later.

10. Are deductions and payroll functlons centralized?

Yes.




11. Is the state willing to offer a limited product in year one to gauge benefit
communications and enrollment success? Rather than offering all programs at

once?
The Commonwealth will decide which products to offer, and the time of product

offerings, based on the proposals received.

12. Who administers the Section 125 plan?
‘Not applicable.

13. If a third party is managmg the communications and enroliment processes, is a
warm transfer to carriers for purposes of claims management acceptable? -
The Commonwealth will consider any systems and methods for data exchanges
that can be demonstrated. to be cost-effective and efficient. .

14. Is your employee vision plan employee-funded or employer-funded? -
The vision plan is provided by a health and welfare fund; that organization

fu;lds the benefit.

15. Is.your employee health plan employee-funded or employer-funded?
The employee health plan is provided by a health and welfare fund; that .
organization funds the benefit. Certain employee groups are required to make a
1% contribution toward the cost of the health plan benefit.

16. Can you provide spemﬁc mformatlon on what is covered under your employee
vision plan?

e Anmual vision examination covered in full

» Frames every two years, covered to a maximum $200 wholesale
allowance; balance is paid at participating providers up to wholesale cost
plus 20%

o Glasses every year up to age 16, every two years thereatter; standard
glass or plastic lenses covered in full at a participating provider

o Cosmetic contact lenses - imited to a $50 payment in lieu of all other
vision benefits. Participating provider’s charge is limited to Retail Cost

less 25%.

17. The Commonwealth has requested large multi day meeting sessicns. What
other meetings will be supported/required? What other kinds of
endorsementcommunication/marketing support will the Commonwealth prowde
to help make these programs successful?

18. Can group meetings be mandatery? Will the Commonwealth allow 1 on 1
mestings with enrollment speacialists if an employee indicates he/she desires
individual attention? Under what circumstances?

Group meetings will be conducted on a voluntary basis. No one-on-one
meetings will be permitted during work hours, An employee may schedule one-
on-one meetings on their own time,




19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

28.

With respect to products the employee population has widely varying
characteristics that makes one size fit all purchasing problematic. Would the
Commonwealth consider an array of group and individual instrance products
which provide broad financial security?

Yes. Vendors may propose an array of group and individual insurance products.
The Commonwealth will decide which products to offer, and the time of product
offerings, based on the bids received. (Please refer to Question #11}

Is the State Universify System included in the Commonwealth’s population? s
there any thought of including the System in the future?
No. The State University System is not included in the Commonwealth’s

population.

Are the specifications in the Terms & Conditions something that the catrier needs
to be concerned with from an insurance perspective?

Page 1 - Does the Commonwealth have a sense of what percentage of the
represented employees will be able to pariicipate in these programs? We are
aware that bargaining is currently under way with a large union and are curious if
there is any sense from that process about the union's willingness fo participate.

Page 23 and Page 32 — Page 23 says that employee age should be as of 1/1
and page 32 says that employses should have no tax liability. For the latter to be
true, for voluntary group life the age should be measured as of 12/31 fo be
consistent with IRC Section 797 Even though the proposed programs are fully
voluntary, this section of IRC Section 79 applies in a material way.

Page 30 —there is a statement that changes to a vendors system that requires
programming changes can't be charged fo the employees? Does that mean that
vendors are not allowed to build such expenses into the premium rates?

Page 32 ~ does the Commonwealth reafly insist that voluntary group disability
benefits be partable? This is not common in the group insurance industry.

Page 32 item 8 -- what underwriting/actuarial services are contemplated in this
ftem, other than renewal underwriting?

Pages 33-36 - to whom would penalties be paid in the event of non-compliant

performance?
Penalties would be paid to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania in the event of

non-compliant performance.

Appendix D Rate Card -- does the Commonwealth anticipate having single-age
rates for Group Life and Disability? i

The RFP also states, the offeror must accept the Commonwealth's standard
eligibility data. We request a description of the data elements included so we are

certain it meets minimum standards.




30. How many payroll interfaces will be“required? :
An individual payroll interface is required for each product offered.

31. Will the Commonwealth entertain offering any voluntary benefits on a pre-tax
basis where suitable?
The Commonwealth anticipates offeririg voluntary benefits on a pre-tax basis, a

allowable under the Internal Revenue Code. :

32. Given the array of potential products there are concetns about the
appropriateness of one common roll out date, especially for complicated products
such as Long Term Care. Wili the Commonwealth entertain staggered enrollment -
campaigns to facilitate better communication/educational experiences for the
employee population?

The Commonwealth will consider staggered or phased enrollment campaigns
over several years for individual benefits. Vendors should explain reasons for

their preference in their proposals,

33. The census data provided in'Appendix F is identical to the data which was
provided to MetLife in 2005 and the number of employee lives in Appendix F,
which fotals 81,739, differs from the approximately 79,000 lives figure cited on
page 29 of the RFP. Please provide a current census with the following
information: :

Date of Birth

Gender

Annual covered salary

Occupation : ) .

‘State of Residence '

Coverage Option (if there is an existing plan)

Bargaining ve. Salaried Indicatof”

Dependent Spouse Indicator if the employee has a spouse or recognized
domestic partner _

* & & & & ¢ 0 9

Life Questions:

34. There is no indication in any of the RFP material provided that there is a current
optional and/or dependent life insurance plan in effect. If there is no current plan,
. then the plan can be priced as a new plan. However if there is an existing plan,
could you provide the last 5 years of experience as defined below by coverage by
year:
¢ Premium
o Claims Paid
« Change in Reserve by Reserve Type
"e  Claims Incurred




35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

41,

43.

In addition, if there is an existing plan, couid you provide:

« Detailed Plan Design Information (SPD, Policy, Certificate, or Plan Documents)

e A summary of any plan changes over the past five years?

= A summary of any changes in rates due to plan changes? [f so, what was the
new rate and when was it effective?

Can you provide any information about the level of enrollment participation? ‘

Is it possible tha'it the new carrier would acquire bargained groups with legacy plan
designs if the proposed plan design is not accepted by such groups? If so, we would
need to price those plans separately. Please provide relevant supporting information.

ltem # 3 on page 30 of the RFP says that in subsequent open enrollments, the
insurance carrier may require proof of insurability as determined by the carrier and
as agreed to by the Commonwealth. What does “as agreed to by the Commonwealth
mean?’ ‘

Paragraph 1-25 on page 7 of the RFP says the effective date will be determined only
after the contract has been fully executed. However, p. 12 shows an assumed
5/1/2007 effective date. How likely is 5/1/2007 the likely date?

ltem 5 on p. 30 says coverage must be continued for employees on Leave Without

Pay.

o Are employees who are or who become disabled considered on Leave Without
Pay?

¢ Does the Commonwealth desire that a disability provision be added to Group Life
Insurance protection?

+ Can the Commonwealth describe the types of Leave available, including the
maximum durations, the process of approvals, etc.?

For the conversion privilege, the Commonwealth requests MetLife offer the preferred
group rate for one year (p. 32 of the RFP). Please specify what specnflc group rates
are being referred {o?

Page 2 of Appendix A, section 9 (Taxes) states that the Commonwealth is exempt
from several state taxes. Are the Commonwealth and/or the employees exempt from

insurance premium faxes?

If there is currently life coverage, and the Commonwealth does not retain the current
carrier, will the liability for the currently disabled lives be retained by the incumbent
carrier, or will this liability be transferred to the new carrier.




LTD Questions

44, Does the Commonwealth currently offer a voluntary LTD plan? If not, we would
price the pian as a brand new group. However, if there is'a current LTD plan in
place, we would like o obtain as'much information as possible, as requested below:

Last5 years of premium and claim experience, to include:

a. Premium

b. Average Monthly Volume

c. Average Monthly Lives

d. Monthly Rates, or Administrative Fees and Rate Basis

e. Claims Paid

f. Claim Count

g. Paid and Incurred AnaIySIS

h. In the event a Paid and Incurred Analysls s unavallable an Open and

Closed Claim listing for the experience pel’!Od( ). The listing should include
the following fieids: '

i. Date of Disabillty
ii. Benefit Start Date
iil. Termmination Date
iv. Age at Disability
v. Monthly Gross Bensfit
vi, Monthly Net Benefit
vii. Accumulated Benefits Paid
viil. Social Security Approval, (Yes or No)
ix, Diagnosis Code '
X C—‘:Iender

xi, Status (Active or Terminated)
45. In addition, if there is an existing plan, could you provide:

. Detalled Plan Design [nformat[on (SPD, Cert, or Plan Documents)
« A summary of any plan changes over the last five years
+ A summary of any changes in rates due {o plan changes

48. Current Insured Census file, in an excel format, with the following:
. Date of Birth

b Gender

c. Annual covered salary

d. State of residence

e. Occupation

f. Coverage Option (if appllcable)

Y

47, If there is no current LTD plan, any pension disability-information that is available
would be helpful in the pricing of the LTD plan. More specifically a Plan
Document which describes the formulas, benefit tevels, etc. A census indicator
showing vesting status toward a pension disability benefit and a covered years
indicator to allow us to estimate potential pension benefits would also be helpful.




48, If applicable, please provide a description of the current Salary Continuation/
Paid Time Off ar STD plan

49. Are employee contributions to be remitted on a pre-tax or post-tax basis?
The Commonwealth anticipates offering voluntary benefits on a pre-tax basis, as
allowable under the Internal Revenue Code.

50, For the portability provision, the Commonwealth requests the preferred group
rates be charged for a period of at least two years (p. 32 of the RFP). Please
specify what specific group rates are being referred to? )

51. Do you prefer a single payroll slot for Voluntary Benefits or do you prefer an
individual payroll slot for each benefit? (Page 12, II-2 (a) (2) ()
Individual payroll slots are preferred.

52. Will you provide Social Security Number on the eligibility file?
Yes.

53. Some benefits, including pet insurance and auto/home insurance, are typically
enrolled year-round. Will the Commonwealth allow employees to enroll in some
benefits at all times of the year? .

The Commonwealth will consider year-round enrollment for benefits that would

notbe impactecf by adverse selection.

54. How does the Commonwealth prefer to distribute marketing materials to the
employees, at the workplace or by mail to the home?
The Contractor will be responsible for developing the communication plan. The
Commonwealth is interested in the proposer’s ideas on how best to communicate
the information for employees.

55. Will the offeror/project manager be allowed {o contact individual Departments
(including correctional facilities) to set up education and enroliment meetings in a
smaller setting?

Under the proper circumstances, this may be permissible. The Contractor will be
responsible for developing the communication plan. The Commonwealth is
interested in the proposer’s ideas on how best to commurnicate information for

employees.

56, Will the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania support 20 minute individual meeiings
between the offeror and all employees to educate and enroll the bensfit
offerings? This will allow the 30,000 employees that don't have access to a
computer during the day fo enroll and also allow everyone to ask questions in a
more personal setting. These optional individual meetings would be conducted
in addition to the group meetings by licensed non-commissioned benefit
representatives.

No one-on-one meetings will be permitted during work hours.




ALY

- 57. What is your current method of enroliment for core benefits? How do the 30,000

employees without computer access currently enroll?
Paper forms. r

58. The Commonwealth wants all benefits to be portable for its employees. Do-you
define portable as the ability for an employee to participate after they leave
employment of the Commonwealth via direct bill or do you define portable as all
benefits can continue on a direct bill basis even aifter the master policy and

- payroll deductions have been cancelled?
The Commonwealth defines portable as the ability for an employee to participate

after they leave employﬁlent of the Commonwealth via direct bill.

59, Is the Commonwealth interested in launching all products at cnee, or a more

phased-in approach over several years?
The Commonwealth is open to either approach. Vendors should explam reasons

~ for their preference in their proposals.

60. Can you provide a full census including DOH, DOB, Salary, Gender and Job

Classification?
The Commonwealth’s standard data interface includes all of these except Job

Classification.

. 61.Do ybu have a preference for benefit duration for STD and LTD or do you prefer

we recommend durations?
The proposer should recommend durations.

62. |s disability currently offered to any of the Commonweaith employees?
The Commuonwealth does not offer a disability benefit. The pension system

offers a disability retirement benefit.

63. Do ali employees currently recsive employer—pald term hfe at one-times salary

(1x) up to $40,0007
All permanent employees receive this benefit, with the exception of 4,300 Taw

enforcement employees whose maximum is $50,000.

84. Can you provide the following for your employer—pald life program 5 years of
claim history, 5 years of waiver of premium hlstory, and copies of the master

policy and certificate of coverage?

7

~ 65, Is the Commonwealth considering reducing the current Rx benefit fo add a

supplemental plan?
Prescription benefits are offered through a health and welfare fund. The

Commonwealth does not have jurisdiction over the benefits offered by that fund.

66. Does your current Rx Plan have any monthly or annual caps’r‘
No.

67. Do you offer any voluntary bensfits that are not listed on the Commorwealth’s
website?




68.

- B9,

70.

71.

72.

73,

74,

No.

The offeror is able to comply with the RFP specifications. However, will the
Commonwealth consider an alternative proposal where the Offeror/Broker if
selected would conduct a separate RFP process with the assistance of the
Commonwealth? This approach brings the advantages detailed below:

a. Allows for more competition, negotiafion, improved plan design and
reduced pricing.

b. Streamlines underwriting requirements or provides for no underwriting.

¢. Facilitates the selection of insurance carriers that are best-in-class for
each product.

d. Ensures independence between broker and insurance carrier and allows
for replacement of carrier if they fail to deliver on all program
requirements.

Our partnership has significant experience in other Commonwealths, State
Governments and large employers where our best-in-class RFP procegss has
added great value for the employees.

No, the Commonwealth will not consider the described altemative approach.

Is it accéptable for the Insurance Carrier(s) to maintain the beneficiary forms or
do you prefer the offeror (broker) to perform this function?
The Commonwealth is willing to consider having the Insurance Carrier(s) to

~maintain beneficiary forms.

Did the Commonwealth use a consultant to help write the RFP? Will a consultant
assist in the bid evaluation process? If so, can you identify the consultant(s)?

Census data provided does not outline occupations, full-ime or part-time
designation, union designation, or union name/affillation. Please provide census
data which outlines individual's occupations. (Special indicators showing which
personnel are police, fire, or prison guard personnel is very important.)”

Please provide a comprehensive grid outlining which groups/unions/segments of
the population currently have Group Life, STD, LTD, Critical lliness, LTC, Cancer
Insurance, Supplemental Prescription Drug Insurance, etc. — Include
approximate headcounts/volumes.

For coverage currently in place, please provide current rates, carrier names, and

plan designs. ¥
At present, the Commonwealth does not offer any voluntary benefits to

employees. Several independent agencies that use the Commonwealth's payroll
system offer additional life insurance; these comprise a very small portion of the
total employee base. Another 4,800 employees participate in a union-sponsored
insurance offering. (Please refer to Question #1)

In regards to Disability, do any of the current insurance programs coordinate
benefits with the employees usage of sick leave/sick bark, etc. (please note on
plan design grids)?




75. For groups that already have coverage in place, is it the intent of this RFP to
replace existing coverage with coverage quoted by us? Oris it the intent to have
our coverage supplement current coverage already in place?

Please refer to Question 73.

76. If existing benefits vary by group, is the intent of this RFP fo merge fo a standard
plan design for each product?
At present, the Commonwealth does not offer any voluntary benefits to

‘employees.

77. The RFP mentions that unicns must agree to the proposed benefit programs.
How will this process be managed? How soon could the Commonwegith provide
a determination of the final population of employees who will be eligibie for the
program (including union employees whose Union management approve

participation?)

78. Are all 79,000 employess eligible or just those that don't have coverage offered
today (i.e. permanent part-time employees)?
All permanent full-time employess, and those permanent part-time employees
who work atleast 50% of full-time hours, will be eligible for the benefits. (Please

refer to Question #8)

79. Will the state endorse the programs available over any current voluntary plans in
force or will all existing plans plus the proposed plan be offered? Please
describe the level of endorsement that would be provided and how the
endorsement campaign would be managed.

The Commonwesalih does not. currently offer any voluntary beneflts to

employees.

80. Will the carrier have access to all eligible employees via face-to-face and/or one-
on-one meetings? '
The Commonwealth will not allow face-to-face and/ or one-on-one meetings
during work hours. An employee may schedule one-on-one meetings on their
* own time. The Commonwealth would like to offer group meetings in the
following locations: Harrisburg, Philadelphia, Pittsburgh, Wilkes-
Barre/Scranton, Allentown/Easton, Erie, and Johnstown. (Please refer to

Question #2)

81. Will the carrier have acCeé_s to all eligible employees via group meetings? Will
participation in the group meetings be mandatory?

82. Will group enroliment mestings be held during normal business hours? During

lunch hour? During the course of the business day? ;




83.

84,

85.

86.

87.

89.

90.

ls the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania interested in subsidizing premium
payments on any or all products? If so, how much?
No. :

Is the Commanwealth of Pennsylvania expecting mailers/benefits packages to be
sent to home addresses?

The Contractor will be responsible for developing the communication plan. The
Commonwealth is interested in the proposer’s ideas on how best to communicate
the information for employees. (Please refer to Question #54)

Will the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania agree fo distribute written
communication materials via its internal mail and email distribution network? [f
so, will the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania bear or share any of the costs?
What costs would the Commonwealth expect to be reimbursed for?

Has the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania ever attempted to install Voluntary
Benefit programs similar to the ones outlined in this proposal? If so, what were
the outcomes/takeaways? What made the process successful or unsuccessful?

Access to empioyees:

a. Will one-on-one meetings be possible?

b. Who will be sponsoring (endorsing face-to-face migs.?) The enroliments,
the Union, or the Gov't. administration?

c. How many different physical locations are there?

d. What is the smallest concentration of ee's, largest concentration of ee’s,
avg. # of eg's per location.

Benefits History:
" a. Have voluntary products been offered in the past?
b, Ifsc: .
i. What products?
ii. What cariers?
ii. When were they offered?
iv. What kind of participation was achieved?
v. Are they still in force?

Please check all that currently apply to benefit enroliments:
a. One form per benefit
b. Consolidated enrollment form




Manual data entry of changes/additions

Blank enrollment forms o
Pre-printed enrollment forms (excluding current choices)
Pre-printed enroliment forms (including current choices)

Forms distributed via interoffice mail

Forms distributed via U.S Mail fo employee’s homes

Scan form technology

Benefit election confirmation statement

Group meetings conducted by Human Resources personnel
Group meetings conducted by third party

Video/multimedia presentation

Dedicated personnel for answering questions via telephone during
‘enrollment -

Interactive voice response system

Kiosk

Intranet

internet

P EAT TSm0 R0
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91. In 2005, the Commonwealth went out to bid with a similar proposal and never
awarded one. Could you explain why? Is this likely to occur again?

92. Did the Commeonwealth engage a consultant in regards to drafting this RFP’? If
so, who was the consultant and are they currently acting in this capacity?

93. Would you cansider looking at another voluntary benefit, such as:

a. On-line Employee Discounts

b. Prepaid Legal insurance

¢. Home & Auto Insurance
Yes. The Commonwealth is open to considering such benefits. However, the
Commonwealth will decide which products to offer, and the time of p1 oduct

offerings, based on the proposals received.

94. Will refirees of the Commonwealth be eligible for the discounts or programs?
a. If yes, approximately how many retiress would be eligible?
" b. If yes, would pension deduction be available to retirees?
c. If yes and pension deduction is not available, can retirees be offefed
discounts through EFT payment options?
Not at this time. Program offerings may be extended to retirees at a later

date, at the discretion of the Commonwealth.

85. For our legal insurance products, we contract with “individual” attorneys, not
firms. If we utilized and certified attorneys as minority or women attorneys as
part of the panel servicing your plan, would this meet the intent of this section?

96. Does the Commonwealth currenily conduct or recognize individual minority
certification for other professionals they work with (doctors, accountants, etc.)?




97.ls the contract ferm set as described in this section? Would you ke open to other
guarantee periods other than that stated?
The initial term of the contract period is three (3) years with the option of two (2)
one-year renewal periods, which may be exercised in the sole discretion of the

" Commonwealth as one (1) two (2) year renewal or as two (2) one (1) year

renewals. The Issuing Office will fix the Effective Date after the contract has been
fully executed by the selected Offeror and by the Commonwealth and all
approvals required by Commonwealth contracting procedures have been
obtained. '

98. Are you open to proposals for other agreement standards other than whatis
stated here? In other words, would you be open to accepting the vendor's
standard performance guarantees (some could be more stringent, some perhaps
less) or is this exactly what you're looking for on all products and not adhering to
would create non-compliance in the bid?

Vendors may take exception to agreement standaxds, consistent with Section II-8

of the RFP.

99. In regards to Exhibit A-3 (Paper Products) and Exhibit A-6 (Non-Paper Office
Products), doss this recycling requirement apply to materials used ior
communication and open enrollment for the plan? Or does this section apply just
to those contractors who would be directly supplying this type of product fo the
Commonwealth for use (e.g. Purchase of paper for Commonwealth copying
machines needs to meet the recycling criteria) and not {o a benefits vendor and
the materials they use? If not, would not using recycling materials for
communication materials be considered non-compliant or would the -
Commonwealth be open to bids without recycled materials?

100. We can send an invoice breaking out the members if the Commonwealth
requested. Would this mest the requirements of this section?

101, Can we get an exception to the warranty section since we are providing a
service? This section seems fo pertain more to physical products.

102. To conserve costs, our materials are created to be used universally across our
book of business and, therefore, we cannot transfer ownership. Can you provide
more detail on the infent, and possible examples, of this section as it applies to
employee benefits and their communication?

103. Audits are OK as long as they don'’t violate plan member privacy issues. We're
assuming they would not due to the client/atiorney privilege in regards to
sarvices with a legal plan.

104. We could not agree to pay for replacement services in the case of contract
termination. We would assume that we as the vendor would not default on any
of the provisions provided for in Section A during this contract. If this paragraph
is stricken, would we be considered non-compliant?

105. Termination for Convenience: We're assuming this provision is provided in
case budget dollars are not availabie for this plan. This would be a moot paint in




that this is a voluntary pian paid for by employee payroll deduction dollars.
Otherwise, cther than for a breach of contract, we cap't allow termination for
convenience. Would it be possible to strike or amend this section? If not, would

this make the bidder non-compliant?
106. May we get a copy of the RFP in a Word/Exeel document?

107. Will only one carrier be selected to insure /administer ail optional plans (i.e.
Life, AD&D, STD, LTD, LTC) or can multiple carriers be selected by coverage?
The Commonwealth reserves the right to select multiple carriers by coverage.

108. Can you confirm that we are fo assume that all op’uonal plans (i.e. Life, AD&D,
STD, LTD, LTC) will be effective 5/1/2007, but thiat enrollment will not take place
until 7/1/077 If this is the case, we are not sure who will be eligible on 5/1/2007 if
enroliment doesn't take place for another 2 months on 7/1/07. Please clarify.

109, When are future rate changes expected to occur: (a) 5/1 based on the
assumed effective date, or (b) 7/1 enroliment date or (c) at a 1/1 annual

enroliment date or (d) other?

110. Should we assume that COP would like full record-keeping services for all
optional coverages (i.e. Life, AD&D, LTD, STD, LTC)?

111. Should we assume that this group of employees is the active empioyees
currently insured under the Class | Basic Life coverage?

112. Will any current disabled employses be aliowed to enroll for all the optional
coverages (.e. Life, AD&D, STD, LTD, LTC) if they were disabled prior to the
effective date? If so, is there a separate census?

113. Are there any other Opfional Life plans currently being offered to these
employees? If so, may we obtain the plans?

114, Since an Optional Life plan wasn’t provided in the proposal spec:[ﬂcatlons is
there a specific ptan design that you would like to see?

115, Since an Optional AD&D plan wasn’t provided in the proposal specifications, is
there a specific plan design you would like to see?

116. Should the Optional AD&D plan maich the'offering for Optional Life? -

117. Since an L.TD plan wasn't provided in the proposal specifications, is there a
specific plan design-you would like to see”?

118. Since an STD plan wasn't provided in the proposal-specifications, is there a
specific plan design you would like to see?

119. It doesn't appear as if any of the Performance Guarantees are Disability-
related. Please confirm.

™~




120. Do employses participate in PA Public Employees Retirement Systemn or State
Teachers Retirement System plan or just Social Security?

121. Please confirm the plan is Non-ERISA.

122. Please coniirm that all op’tional coverages (i.e. Life, AD&D, LTD, STD, LTC)
would be quoted Net of Commissions.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
BUREAU OF PROCUREMENT

HARRISBURG
January 25, 2007
Subject: ' RFP — Voluntary Benefits
Bid Number: CN00023197
Opening Date/Time: February 25, 2007
Flyer: Addendum #2
To All Bidders:
Clarifications:

Updated information from the Department of General Services (DGS), Preproposal
Conference for REP-CIN00023197 — Voluntary Benefits, which was held on January 18,
2007 at Department of General Services Office, 555 Walnut Stree, 6 Floor, Forum
Place, Harrisburg, PA 17101-1914 are posted to the DGS website as Addendum #2.

The following attachments are part of said Addendum #2:

PREPROPOSAL QUESTIONS — UPDATE

LIST OF ATTENDEES AT PREPROPOSAIL CONFERENCE

SAMPLE STANDARD ELIGIBILITY FILE FORMAT

COPA - EMPLOYER PAID LIFE INSURANCE MASTER POLICY

COPA - EMPLOYER PAID LIFE INSURANCE CERTIFICATE OF

COVERAGE ‘

COPA - EMPLOYER PAID LIFE INSURANCE, THREE (3) YEARS OF

WAIVER HISTORY

7. COPA - EMPLOYER PAID LIFE INSURANCE, THREE (3) YEARS OF
CLATM HISTORY

8. WORD DOCUMENT — REP CN00023197 — VOLUNTARY BENEFITS

G N

S)

Changes to REP CN00023197 — Voluntary Benefits document ars as follows:

Page 2, Part I, Section 1-1, Purpose; Paragraph 2, Sentence 1, the Commonwealth is no
longer considering Short Term Disability products for review under R¥P — CN-
00023197.

Page 2, Part I, Section I-5. Type of Contract; Paragraph 2, Sentence 3 is to read:
“Insurance policies issued under the contract must be issued directly to the program
participant” '




A

Page 23, Part I, Section II—I'O. Cost Submittal; Paragraph 3, Sentence 2 is to read: “
Age means Insured’s age as of December 31 for the year insurance is elected™.

 Page 30, Part IV, Section IV-3, Requirements, Eligibility and Enrollment is to read:

“Prior to the open emrollment, the Commonwealth will forward an electronic file
containing the annual salary and age as of December 31, of the current year.

Except as clarified and amended by this flyer, the terms, donditions, specifications, and

instructions of the invitation to bid and any previous flyers, remain as originally written.

Very truly yours,

Syline M. Shingara

Syline M. Shingara
Commodity Specialist

Phone: (717) 346-3833
E-mail: sshingara@state.pa.us

/'-..




Addendum #2 Questions
January 25, 2007

Questions for the Commonwealth “RFP CN:00023197, Questions”

1.

10.

11.

What current voluntary benefit programs are offered to eligible employees?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

Will the State support and provide employees with time to meet wiith enroliment
counselors to review benefit aptions?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the REP for answer.

When will union participation be determined?
[Note: This answer replaces the answer originally set forth in Addendum #1]

All employees will be participating.

Will all benefits (allowable under IRS code) be required to flow through a Section
125 plan?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the REP for answer.

What is the current short term disability program offered to eligible employees?
What is the current sick pay/salary continuation plan?

The Commonwealth has determined that it is no longer interested in offering a
short term disability benefit, Vendors should not propose a voluntary benefit of

this type.

What is the current LTD plan offered fo eligible employees?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

What is the current Employer Paid group life offering?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

How many eligibility classes are there?

[Note: This answer replaces the answer originally set forth in Adde:ndum #1}
One. All permanent full-time employees, and those permanent part-time
employees who work at least 50% of full-time hours, will be eligible for the
benefits.

How many pay frequencies are there?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the REP for answer.

Are deductions and payroll functions centralized?

Please refer to Addendum #1 of the REP for answer.

Is the state willing to offer a limited produé’r in year one to gauge benefit
communications and enrollment success? Rather than offering all programs at

once?
[Note: This answer replaces the answer originally set forth in Addendum #1]

Yes. Vendors may propose an array of group and individual insurance products.
The Commonwealth will decide which products to offer, and the time of product
offerings, based on the bids received.
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Addendmﬁ #2 Qtleétions --
January 25, 2007

12. Who administers the Section 125 plan?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the REP for answer.

13. if a third party is managing the communications and enroliment processes, is a
warm transfer to carriers for purposes of claims management acceptable?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

14. Is your employee vision plan employee-funded or employer-funded?
[Note: This answer replaces the answer originally set forth in Addendum #1]

Employer funded.

15. Is your employee' health plan employee-funded or employer-funded?
[Note: This answer replaces the answer originally set forth in Addendum #1]
Primarily employer-funded, however, some employees are required to make a
contribution toward the cost of the health plan benefit.

18. Can you provide specific mformatlon on what is covered under your employee

vision plan?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

17. The Commonwealth! has requested large multi day meeting sesslons. What
.other meetings will be supported/required? What other kinds of
endorsement/communication/marketing support will the Commonwealth provide
to help make these programs successful?
An employee may schedule meetings on his/her own time. The Commonwealth
will utilize its electronic mail system, and will utilize agency HR offices, to
distribute limited information tc make employees aware of the benefits.

18. Can group meetings be mandatory? Will the Commonwealth allow 1 on 1
meetings with enrollment specialists if an employee indicates he/she desires
individual attention? Under what circumstances?

Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

19. With respect to products the employee population has widely varying
characteristics that makes one size fit all purchasing problematic. Would the
Commonwealth consider an array of group and individual insurance products

~ which provide broad financial security?
[Note: This answer replaces the answer originally set forth in Addendum #1]

Please refer to Question #11.

20. Is the Stafe University System included in the Commonwealth’s population? Is
there any thought of including the System in the future?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

21. Are the specifications in the Terms & Conditions something that the carrier needs

to be concerned with from an Insurance perspective?
Please refer to REP Section II-8 related to exceptions to ‘che terms and conditions,
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Addendum #2 Questions
January 25, 2007

22. Page 1 - does the Commonwealth have a sense of what percentage of the

23.

24,

25,

26.

27,

28,

represented employees will be able to participate in these programs? We are
aware that bargaining is currently under way with a large union and are curious if
there is any sense from that process about the union’s willingness to participate.
Please refer to Question #3. :

Page 23 and Page 32 -- Page 23 says that employee age should be as of 1/1
and page 32 says that employees should have no tax liability. For the latter to be
true, for voluntary group life the age should be measured as of 12/31 to be
consistent with IRC Section 797 Even though the proposed programs are fully
voluntary, this section of IRC Section 79 applies in a material way.

The Cormmonwealth agrees to this change. For voluntary group life, the age
should now be measured as of 12/31 to be consistent with IRC Section 79.

Page 30 — there is a statement that changes to a vendors system that requires
prograrnming changes can't be charged to the employees? Does that mean that
vendors are not allowed to build such expenses info the premium rates?

The Commonweaith is not responsible for costs incurred by vendors as a result
of programming changes to a given vendor’s system. Vendors may not bill
employees directly for programming changes to a given system. Vendors should
imstead build such expenses into their premium rates.

Page 32 -- does the Commonwealth really insist that voiuntary group disability
benefits be portable? This is not common in the group insurance industry.

The Commonwealth believes that employees should be provided the
opportunity to enroll in insurance products that are in their best interest and
congistent with industry standards. As such, the Commonwealth is interested in
providing employees a portable LTD insurance policy. However, the
Commonwealth will not disqualify a proposal that does not include this
provision/

Page 32 item 8 -- what underwriting/actuarial services are contemplated in this
item, other than renewal underwriting? :
Renewal underwriting is expected to be provided. Please indicate any additional
services that your firm is able to provide.

Pages 33-36 -- to whom would penalties be paid in the event of non-compliant
performance?
[Note: This answer replaces the answer originally set forth in Addendum #1]

Liquidated damages would be paid to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania in
the event of non-compliant performance.

Appendix D Rate Card -- does the Commonwealth anticipate having single-age
rates for Group Life and Disability?
Please complete the rate card in accordance in accordance with the instructions

provided in the RFP.
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Addendum #2 Questions
January 25, 2007

.29, The RFP also states, the offeror must accept the Commonwealth's standard
eligibility data. We request a description of the data elements inciuded so we are
certain it meets minimum standards.

The Commonwealth will provide a sample da‘ca description for the standard file

- format.

30. How many payroll interfaces will be required?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

31. Will the Commonwealth entertain offering any voluntary benefits on a pre-tax

basis where suitable?

Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer. -
32. Given the array of potential products there are concerns about the h
appropriateness of one common roll out date, especially for complicated products
such as Long Term Care. Will the Commonwealth entertain staggered enroliment
campaigns to facilitate better communication/educational experiences for the
employee population?
Flease refer to Addendum #1 of the REP for answer.

33. The census data provided in Appendix F is identical to the data which was -
provided to MetLife in 2005 and the number of employee lives in Appendix F,
which totals 81,739, differs from the approximately 79,000 lives figure cited on
page 29 of the RFP. Please provide a current census with the follow:ng
information:
¢ Date oi Birth

Gender

Annual covered salary

Occupation

State of Residence

Coverage QOption (if there is an existing plan) .

Bargaining vs. Salaried Indicator

Dependent Spouse Indicator if the employee has a spouse or recogmzed
" domestic partner
Vendors should use the census file that is provided with the RFP.

Life Questions:

34. There is no indication in any of the RFP material provided that there is a current
aptional and/or dependent life insurance plan in effect. If there is no current plan,
then the plan can be priced as a new plan. However if there is an existing plan,
could you provide the last 5 years of experience as defined below by coverage

by vyear:
s Premium
s Claims Pald 3

» Change in Reserve by Reserve Type

» Claims Incurred
There is no current plan, so it should be pnced as a new plar.
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35,

38.

37.

38.

38.

40.

Addendum #2 Questions
January 25, 2007

In addition, if there is an existing plan, could you provide:

» Detailed Plan Design Information {(SPD, Policy, Cerlificate, or Plan
Documents)

o A summary of any plan changes over the past flve years?

» A summary of any changes in rates due to plan changes? If so, what was the
new rate and when was it effective?
Flease refer to Question #34,

Can you provide any information about the ievel of enrollment participation?
Carriers should use their experience o estimate levels of participatior. Asno
such plans presently exist, the Commonwealth has no information on level of
enrollment. -

Is it possible that the new carrier would acquire bargained groups with legacy
plan designs if the proposed plan design is-not accepted by such groups? If so,
we would need to price those pians separately Piease prowde felevant
supporting information.

The new carrier will not acquire legacy plan designs.

ltem # 3 on page 30 of the RFP says that in subsequent open enroliments, the
insurance carrier may require proof of insurahility as determined by the carrier
and as agreed to by the Commonwea!th What does “as agreed to by the

Comimonwealth mean?”
The Commonwealth reserves the right to have final review and concurrence with

the required proof of insurability. Deviations from the vendor’s proposed
requirements will be discussed and negotiated as necessary.

Paragraph 1-25 on page 7 of the RFP says the effective date will be determined
only after the contract has been fully executed. However, p. 12 shows an
assumed 5/1/2007 effective date. How likely is 5/1/2007 the likely date?
The Commonwealth is unable {o guarantee the effective date due to the contract
execution process. Itishoped that the contract will be fully executed by May 1,
2007. The proposer may not, however, rely on that date. The subsequent
envollments and start-up process leads us to estimate that July 1, 2007, will be the
effective date for the first benefit coverage that is implemented.

/
ltem 5 on p. 30 says coverage must be continued for employees on Leave

Without Pay., _
o Are employees who are or who become disabled considerad an Leave

Without Pay?
Yes. They are considered to be on Leave Without Pay unless they are using

paid sick Jeave.

¢ Does the Commonwealth desire that a disability provision be added to Greup
Life Insurance protection?
No.

» Can the Commonwealth describe the types of Leave available, including the
maximum durations, the process of approvals, eic.?
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Addendum #2 Questions
; January 25, 2007
Most Commonwealth employees earn paid time off in the form of annual,
personal and. sick leave. The earnings vary based on years of service, with
most unions (but not all) having similar accrual rates. At a minimum,
employees earn 7 days of annual, 1 day of personal, and 13 days of sick leave
each year. The average employee earns 15 days of annual, 4 days of personal,
and 13 days of sick each year. The maximum earning rate is 26 days of
annual, 4 days of personal, and 13 days of sick leave each year. Leave canbe
accumulated to a maximum of 45 days of annual and 300 days of sick. When
used, leave is paid at 100% of salary. Employees request leave. Supervisors
have the discretion to approve leave requests within established guidelines.

41. For the conversion- privilege, the Commonwealth requests MetLife offer the
preferred group rate for one year (p. 32 of the RFP). Please specify what specific
group rates are being referred to? '

The rates that are being proposed in the Cost Proposal section of the vendor’s - -

Tesponse,

42, Page 2 of Appendix A, section 9 (Taxes) states that the Commonwealth is
exempt from several state taxes. Are the Commonwealth and/or the employees

exempt from insurance premium taxes?
The Commonwealth is exempt from. all state taxes. The Commonwealth is
unable to give an opinion as to whether employees are exempt from insurance

premium taxes.

43. If there is currently life coverage, and the Commonwealth does not retain the
current carrisr, will the liability for the currently disabled lives be retained by the
incumbent carrier,.or will this liability be fransferred to the new carrier.

This RFP does not include the life insurance contract for employer-paid coverage.

LTD Questions

44, Does the Commonwealth currently offer a voluntary LTD plan? If not, we would
price the plan as a brand new group. However, if there is a curent LTD plan in
place, we would like to obtain as much information as possible, as requested

below:
The Commonwealth does not offer a voluntary LTD plan. (Please refer to

Question #6 of Addendum #1)

Last 5 years of prermium and claim experience, to include:

a. Premium _

b. Average Monthly Volume

c. Average Monthly Lives ,

d. Monthly Rates, or Administrative Fees, and Rate Basls
e. Claims Paid

f. Claim Count

g. Paid and incurred Analysis
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45,

48,

47,

Addendum #2 Questions
Jamuary 25, 2007

h. in the event a Paid and Incurred Analysis is unavailable an Open and
Ciosed Claim listing for the experience period(s). The listing should include
the following fields:

. 1. Date of Disability (
ii. Benefit Start Date .
iii. Termination Date
iv. Age at Disability
v. Monthly Gross Benefit
vi. Monthly Net Benefit

vii. Accumulated Benefits Paid

viii. Soclal Security Approval (Yes or No}

ix. Diagnosis Code
x. Gender
xi. Status (Active or Terminated)

In addition, if there is an existing plan, could you provide:

e Detailed Plan Design Information (SPD, Cert, or Plan Documents)
« Asummary of any plan changes over the last five years

« A summary of any changes in rates due to plan changes

Please refer to Question #44. :

Current Insured Census file, in an excel format, with the following:
Date of Birth

b. Gender

¢. Annual covered salary

d. State of residence
e
f

W

. Occupation
. Coverage Option (if applicable)
Please refer to Quiestion #44.

¥ there is no current LTD plan, any pension disability information that is available
would be helpful in the pricing of the LTD plan. More specifically a Plan
Document which describes the formulas, benefit leveals, etc, A census indicator
showing vesting status toward a pension disability benefit and a covered years
indicator to allow us to estimate potential pension benefits would also be helpful.
Information regarding the Disability Retirement program can be found at

hittp:/ / www.sers.state,pa.us/sers/cwp/ view.asp?a=260&0=246669&sersSPNav
=15895 | #5806 and

hitp:/ /www sers.state. pa.us/sers/lib/sers/ Membe1Handbook06F-2C-W pdf.
SERS uses the following formulas to determine the pensmn amount for disability

retirements.

1) ¥ the member has more than 16,6667 years of credited service then the
pension ig equal to 2% X years of service X Final Average Salary X the multiplier.

2) ¥ the member has less than 16.6667 years of credited service then the pension
amount is the smaller of: _
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48.

49,

50,

51..

52.

53.

o4,

Addendurn #2 Questions
fanuary 25, 2007

(a) the benefit calculated for superannuation retirement based on service
projected to superannuation date, or
(b) 33 1/3 percent of the final average salary at time of disability.

If the member is superannuated, then the disability is calculated as a
superannuation retirement. ‘

More detailed information is avallable in the Retirement Code, Section 5704 (a)
Disability Annuities.

if applicable, please provide a description of the current Salary Continuation/

Paid Time Off or STD pian.
Most Commonwealth employees earn pald time off in the form of annual,

personal and sick leave. The earnings vary based on years of service, with most
unions (but not all) having similar accrual rates. At a minimum, employees earn
7 days of annmal, 1 day of personal, and 13 days of sick leave each year. The
average employee earns 15 days of annual, 4 days of personal, and 13 days of
sick each year. The maximum earning rate is 26 days of annual, 4 days of
personal, and 13 days of sick leave each year. Leave can be accumulated to a
maximum of 45 days of annual and 300 days of sick. When used, leave is paid at
100% of salary. Employees are encouraged to save sick leave in the event of arv,
emergency or long-term illness or disability. The average employee has
approximately 60 days of sick leave banked.

Are employee contributions to be remitted on a pre-tax or-post-tax basis?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

For the portability provision, the Commonwealth requests the preferred group
rates be charged for a period of at least two years (p. 32 of the RFP). Please
specify what specific group rates are being referred to?

The rates that are being proposed in the Cost Proposal section of the vendor’s

TEsponse. B

Do you prefer a single payroll slot for Voluntary Benefits or do you prefer an
individuat payroll slot for each benefit? (Page 12, II-2 (a) (2) (&)
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

Will you provide Social Security Number on the eligibility file?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer. .
Some benefits, including pet insurance and auto/home insurance, are typlcally

enrolled year-round. Will the Commonwealth allow employees fo enroll in some |
benefits at all times of ths ysar?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the REP for answer.

How does the Commonwealth prefer to distribute marketing materials to the

employees, at the workplace or by mail fo the home?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.
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55. Will the offeror/project manager be allowed fo contact individual Departments
(including correctional facilities) to set up education and enrollment meetings in a
smaller setting?

Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

56. Will the Commonwealth of Pannsylvania support 20 minute individual meetings
between the offeror and all employees to educate and enroll the benefit
offerings? This will allow the 30,000 employees that don’t have access to a
computer during the day to enroll and also allow everyone to ask questions in a
morg personal setting. These optional individual meetings would be conducted
in addition to the group meetings by licensed non-commissioned benefit
representatives.

. Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

57. What is your current method of enroliment for core benefits? How do the 30,000
employees without computer access currently enroll?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

58. The Commonwealth wants all benefis to be portable for its employees. Do you
define portable as the ability for an empioyee to participate after they leave
employment of the Commonwealth via direct bill or do you define portable as all
bensfits can cortinuie on a direct bill basis even after the master policy and
payroll deductions have been cancelied?

Please refer to Addendum #1 of the REP for answer.

59. |s the Commonwealth interested in launching all products at once, or a more
phased-in approach over several years?
Please refexr to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

60. Can you provide a fuil census including DOH, DOB, Salary, Gender and Job
Classification?
[Note: This answer replaces the answer originally set forth in Addendum #1]
No.

61. Do you have a preference for benefit duration for STD and LTD or do you prefer
we recommend durations? :
[Note: This answer replaces the answers originally set forth in Addendum #1]
The proposer should recommend durations. Please refer to Question #5 for
additional information. ’

62. Is disability currently offered to any of the Commonwealth employees?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the REI for answer. :

63. Do all employees currently receive employer-paid term life at one-fimes salary
(1x) up to $40,0007
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the REP for answer.

64. Can you provide the following for your employer-paid life program: 5 years of

claim history, 5 years of walver of premium history, and copies of the master
policy and certificate of coverage? )
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65.

66.

67.

68.

Addendum #2 Questions
January 25, 2007

The Commonwealth is able to provide 3 years of claim history, 3 years of waiver
premium history, and copies of the master policy and certificate of coverage.

Is the Commonwealth considering reducing the current Rx benefit to add a
supplemental plan? _
[Note: This answer replaces the answer originally set forth in Addendum #1]

No.

Does your current Rx Plan have any monthly or annual caps?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

Do you offer any voluntary beneﬁts_tha"i are not listed on the Commonwealth’s

website?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

The offeror Is able to comply with the RFP specifications. However, will the
Commonwealth consider an alternative proposal where the Offeror/Broker if
selected would conduct a separate RFP process with the assistance of the
Commonwealth'f‘ This approach brings the advantages detailed below:

a. Allows for more competition, negotiation, improved plan deS|gn and
reduced pricing. ’

b. Streamlines underwriting requirements or provides for no underwritmg

c. Facilitates the selection of insurance carriers that are best-in- c{ass for

~ each product.

d. Ensures independence befween broker and insurance carrier and allows
for replacement of carrier if they fail to deliver on all program
requirements.

Our partnership has significant experlence in other Commonwealths, State
Governments and large employers where our best-in-class RFP process has

. added great value for the employees. ]

69.

70.

71,

Please refer to Addendum #1 of the REP for answer.

Is it acceptable for the Insurance Carrier(s) to maintain the beneficiary forms or
do you prefer the offeror (broker) to perfortn this function?

Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

Did the Commonwealth use a consuitant to help write the RFP? Will a consuliant
assist in the bid evaluation process? If so, can you identify the consultani(s)?
Part 1 - Yes. Part2 - The consultant may assist, at the discretion of the RFP

committee. Part 3 -~ Buck Consultants.

Census data provided does not outline occupations, full-time or part-time
designation, union designation, or union name/affiliation. Please provide census

" data which outlines individual's occupations. (Special indicators showing which

personnel are police, fire, or prison guard personnel is very important.)
Census data by occupation is not available. However, approximately 4300
employees are State Police enlisted personnel, and there are approximately
10,000 correctional officers. ‘
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72. Please provide a comprehensive grid outlining which groups/unions/segments of

73.

74.

75.

the population currently have Group Life, STD, LTD, Critical lliness, LTC, Cancer
Insurance, Supplemental Prescription Drug Insurance, etc. — Include
approximate headcounts/volumes.

"The Commonwealth provides Group Life coverage to all permanent employees.

The other benefits are not provided.

For coverage currently in place, please provide current rates, carrier names, and
plan designs.
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

In regards to Disability, do any of the current insurance programs coordinate
benefits with the employses usage of sick leave/sick bank, etc. (please note on
plan design grids)?

Disabled employees are permitted o use their earned paid sick leave, or up to 6
months of leave without pay.

For groups that already have coverage in place, is it the intent of this RFP to
replace existing coverage with coverage quoted by us? Oris it the intent to have
our coverage supplement current coverage already in place?

« Please refer to Addendum #1 of the REP for answer.

76.

77,

78.

79.

If existing benefits vary by group, is the intent of this RFP to merge to a standard
plan design for each product?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the REP for answer.

The RFP mentions that unions must agree to the proposed benefit programs.
How will this process be managed? How soon could the Commonwealth provide
a determination of the final population of employees who will be eligible for the
program (including union employees whose union management approve
participation?) ' j
Please refer to Question #3. All permanent full-time employees, and those
permanent pari-time employees who work at least 50% of full-time hours, will be
eligible for the benefits. Approximately 79,000 employees from all unions will be
eligible.

Are all 79,000 employees eligible or just those that don’t have coverage offered
today (i.e. permanent pari-time employees)?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

Wilt the state endorse the programs available over any current voluntary plans in
force or will all existing plaris pius the proposed plan be offered? Please
describe the level of endorsement that would be provided and how the

endorsement campaign would be managed.
[Note: This answer replaces the answer originally set forth in Addendum #1]

The Commonwealth does not currently offer any voluntary benefits to
employees. The number of employees enrolled in plans available from other
sources is a small percentage of the total.
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81.

82

83.

84.

85.

86.
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Will the carrier have access to all eligible employees via face-to-face and/ot one-

on-one meetings?
[Note: This answer replaces the answer originally sef forth in Addendum #1]

No. Pleage refer to Question #2.

Will the carrier have access to all eligible employees via group meetings? Will
participation in the group meetings be mandatory?

The carrier will have access to all or nearly all eligible employees via group
meetings. Participation in the group meetings is not mandatory.

will group enroliment mestings be held during normal business hours? During
lunch hour? During the course of the business day?

Group enrollment meetings will be held during normal business hours and
during other such times as may be mutually established between the

Commonwealth and the vendor.

Is the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania interested in subsidizing premium
payments on any or all producis? If so, how much?
Please refefto Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

Is the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania expecting mallerslbeneﬂts packages to be -

sent to home addresses?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answerr./

n

Wil the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania agree to distribute written
communication materials via its internal mail and emall distribution neiwork? If
so, will the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania bear ot share any of the costs?
What costs would the Commonwealth expect to be reimbursed for?

Under certain circumstances, the Commonwealth would consider distribution of
materials provided by vendors. The Commonwealth would not expect to bear
costs for this; costs subject to zeimbursement would depend on what is being

proposed.

Has the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania ever attempted to install Voluntary
Benefit programs similar to the ones outlined in this proposal? If so, what were
the outcomesitakeaways? What made the process successful or unsuccessful?’
The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has never offered a voluntary benefit

program to its employees

87. Access o employees:

a. Wil one-on-one meetings be possible?
Not during work howus.

b. Who will be sponsoring (endorsing face-to-face migs.?) The enrollments,
the Union, or the Gov't. administration?
The Commonwealth will support the process, although it will not

endorse a specific product or vendor,
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Addendum #2 Questioris
January 25, 2007

¢. How many different physical locations are there?
The Commonwealth had over 450 discrete, permanent locations at last
count.

d. What is the smallest conceniration of ee’s, largest concentration of ee’s,
avgy. # of ee’s per location.
The smallest concentration of employees is one (1). The largest
concentration of employees is approximately 15,000, located at the
Capitol complex. The Commonwealth does not have an average number
of employees per location calculation available.

89. Benefits History:
a. Have voluntary products been offered in the past?

No.
b. Ifso:

i. What products?

ii. What carriers?

iii. When were they offered?

~iv. What kind of participation was achieved?

v. Are they still in force? _

Not applicable.

80. Please check all that currently apply to benefit enrollments:
One form per benefit
Consolidated enroliment form
Manual data entry of changesladdltlons
Blank enrollment forms
Pre-printed enrollment forms (excluding current choxces}
Pre-printed enrollment forms (including current chmces)
Forms distributed via intercffice mail
Forms distributed via U.S Mail to employee’s homes
Scan form technology
Benefit election confirmation statement
Group meetings conducted by Human Resources personnel
Group meetings conducted by third party

. Video/muitimedia presentation
Dedicated personnel for apswering questlons via telephone during
enrollment
Interactive volce response system
Kiosk
Intranet
Internst

A]l of the above apply.

P3TATTSEMe 0D

~oToO

91. In 2005, the Commonwealth went out o bid with a similar proposal and never
awarded one. Could you explain why? |s this likely to occur again?
No. The Issuing Office reserves the right to reject any or all proposal received )
when such rejection is in the best interest of the Commonweatlh.
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Lo Addendum #2 Questions .

Janmary 25, 2007

92, Did the Commonwealth engage a consultant in regards to drafting this RFP? If
so0, who was the consultant and are they currently acting in this capacity?

Yes; the Commonwealth has an on-going contract with Buck Consultants (Buck) -

for benefits and actuarial consulting. Buck provided some input in drafting the
RFP.

\
J

93. Would you consider looking at another voluntary benefit, such as:

a. On-line Employee Discounts
b. Prepaid Legal Insurance
c. Home & Aufo Insurance
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

04. Will retiress of the Commonwealth be eligible for the discounis or programs?
a. Ifyes, approximately how many retirees wouid be eligible?
b. If yes, would pension deduction be available to retirees?-
¢. Ifyesand pension deduction is not available, can retirees be offered
discounts through EFT payment options?
Please refer to Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer.

" 95. For our legal insurance products, we contract with “individual” attorneys, not
firms. If we utilized and ceriified attorneys as minority or women attorneys as
part of the panel servicing your plan, would this meet the intent of this section?
The Commonwealth’s Bureau of Minority and Women Business Opportunities
(BMWBO) cextifies mincrity business ente1pnses Minority attorneys can apply
for certification as a sole proprietorship or in a corporate entity capacity (PC,
LLP, L.LC). So long as the minority attorney is certified, the individual can
receive consideration in the DB submittal. Individual attorneys that own,
operate and control at least 51% of their own firm should be encouraged to

. obtain certification.

96. Does the Commonwealth currently conduct or recognize individual minority
certification for other professionals they work with (doctors, accountants, etc.)?
" Yes. Please refer to Question #95 for additional information.

97. ts the contract term set as described in this section? Would you be open to other
guarantee petiods other than that stated?
[Note: This answer replaces the answer originally set forth in Addendum #1]
The contract term is set. The Conunonwealth will not consider a different

guarantee penod

98. Are you open to proposals for other agreement standards other than what is N
stated here? In other words, would you be open fo accepting the vendor’s
standard performance guarantees (some could be more stringent, scme perhaps
less) or is this exactly what you're leoking for on all products and not adhering to
would create non-compliance in the bid? '

Please refer to Addendum #1 of the REP for answer,
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Addendum #2 Questions
January 25, 2007

99. In regards to Exhibit A-3 (Paper Products} and Exhibit A-6 (Non-Paper Office
Products), does this recycling requirement apply to materiais used for
communication and open enrollment for the plan? Or does this section apply just
to those contractors who would be directly supplying this type of product to the
Commonwaealth for use (e.g. Purchase of paper for Commonwealth copying
machines needs to meet the recycling criteria) and not to a benefits vendor and
the materials they use? If not, would not using recycling materials for
communication materials be considered non-compliant or would the
Commonwealth be open to bids without recycled materials?

Please refer to Queston #21.

100.

101.

102.

103.

104.

105.

1086.

107.

We can send an invoice breaking out the members if the Commonwealth
requested. Would this meet the requirements of this sectlon’?
Please refer to Question #21.

Can we get an exception to the warranty section since we are providinga
service? This section-seems to pertain more to physical products.
Please refer to Question #21.

To conserve costs, our materials are created to be used universally across our
book of business and, therefore, we cannot fransfer ownership. Can you
provide more detail on the intent, and possible examples, of this section as it
applies to employee benefits and their communication’?

Please refer to Question #21.

Audits are OK as long as they don't viclate plan member privacy issues, We're
assummg they would not due to the client/attorney privilege in regards 1o
services with a legal plan. ‘

Please refer to Question #21.

We could not agree to pay for replacement services in the case of confract
termination. We would assume that we as the vendor would not default an any

“of the prows:ons provided for in Section A during this contract. If this

paragraph is stricken, would we be considered non-compliant?
Please refer to Question #21,

Termination for Convenience: We're assuming this provision is provided in
case budget dollars are not available for this plan. This wouid be a moot point
in that this is a voluntary plan paid for by employee payroll dedustion dollars.
Otherwise, other than for a breach of contract, we can't allow termination for
convenience. Would it be possible to strike or amend this section? If not,
would this make the bidder non-compliant?

Please refer to Question #21.

May we get a copy of the RFP in a Word/Excel document?
The Commonwealth will post a link to a Word version of the REP. We
understand that this assists vendors in structuring their proposals.

Will only one carrier be selected fo insure fadminister all optional plans (i.e.
Life, AD&D, STD, LTD, LTC) or can multiple carriers be selected by coverage?
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Addendum #2 Questions *
January 25, 2007

-~

Please refer fo Addendum #1 of the RFP for answer,

108. Can you confirm that we are to assume that all optional plans (i.e. Life, AD&D,
STD, LTD, LTC) will be effective 5/1/2007, but that enroliment will not take
place until 7/1/077 If this is the case, we are not sure who will be eligible on
5/1/2007 if enroliment doesn't take place for another 2 months on 7/1/07.

Please clarify.
We anticipate the initial contracts to be effective 5/1/2007, but that coverage

would not be effective into July. Standard practice is for the Commonwealth to

provide updated eligibility files during the systems testing phase, which also
ensures that carriers have reasonably current data. The vendor may not rely,

however, on the May 1, 2007 date. Please refer to the answer to Question #39.

* 4109. When are future rate changes expected to oceur: (a) 5/1 based on the
assumed effective date, or (b) 7/1 enrollment date or {c) at a 1/1 annual
enroliment date or (d) other?

The Commonwealth expects changes to occur on July 1, 2007.

110. Should we assume that COP would Iike full record-keeping services for all
optional covérages (i.e. Life, AD&D, LTD, STD, LTC)?
Yes. ,

111. Should we assume that this group of employees is the active employees
currently insured under the Class | Basic Life coverage?
The term Class 1 does not apply in this bid. Employees under the Governor's
jurisdiction who are on the Commonwealth's payroll system are eligible for

these benefits.

112. Will any current disabled employees be allowed to enroli for all the optionat
coverages (i.e. Life, AD&D, STD, LTD, LTC]) if they were disabled prior to the
effective date? If so, is there a separate census?

The term “disabled employees” has a variety of meanings. No employees who -
have separated service from the Commonwealth will be eligible for the |

voluntary benefits. ‘ ‘

113. Are there any other Optional Life plans currently being offered to these ,
employees? If so, may we obtain the plans?
The Commonwealth does not offer any other optional life plans

144, Since an Optional Life plan wasn’t provided in the proposal .specificatibns, is
there a specific plan design that you would like to see?
Plan design recommendations will be up to the offeror.

~ 115, Since an Optional AD&D plan wasn't provided in the proposal speCIflcatlons is
" there a specific plan design you would like to see?
Plan design recommendations will be up to the offeror.

116. Should the Optional AD&D plan match the offering for Optional Life?
Plan design recommendations will be up to the offeror.
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117.

118.

118.

120.

121,

122,

123.

124,

125.

126.

127.

Addendum #2 Questions
Janmary 25, 2007

Since an LTD plan wasn't provided in the proposal specifications, is there a
specific plan design you would like fo see?
Plan design recommendations will be up to the offeror.

Since an STD plan wasn't provided in the proposal specifications, is theré a
specific plan design you would like to see?
Plan design recommendations will be up to the offeror.

It doesn't appear as if any of the Petformance Guarantees are Disability-
related. Please confirm.
Performance Guarantees ave as stated in the RFP.

Do employees participate in PA Public Employees Retirement System or State
Teachers Retirement System plan or just Social Security?

Most Commonwealth employees are enrolled in the State Employees
Retirement System for pension; a very few are enrolled in the Public School
Retirement System. Most Commonwealth employees also are enrolled in
Social Security.

Please confirm the plan is Non-ERISA.
The plan is non-ERISA.

Please confirm that all optional coverages (i.e. Life, AD&D, LTD, 8TD, LTC)
would be quoted Net of Commissions. p
Cost proposals should include all costs to be charged, including any

commissions.

Section [1-4 A) Financial Ratings. Typically not-for-profits are not rated. As
such, would this disqualify the vendor even if PA-based and in business for 40+

vears?
Yes.

Please verify that frame allowance is $200 wholesale and not retail.
The frame allowance is $200 wholesale.

I-5 Type of Contract — “Insurance policies issued under the contract must be
issued directly to the Commonwealth,” Most voluntary/supplemental policies
are issued in the name of the employee, not the employer. Is this a problem?
The requirement is modified by this Addendum #2. The overall contract for

each product will be with the Commonwealth. The individual policies are
between the vendor and the employee.

Will the Commonwealth provide home addresses for all eligible employees?
Yes.

What are the consultant company names introduced at the pre-proposal

meeting today? And what is their role in the process?
Buck Consultants. Their role is as advisor to the Commonwealth.
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128.

120.

130.

131.

132.

133.

134,

135,

136.

137.

138.

130.

Addendum #2 Questions
January 25, 2007

Have you survayed employees to determine programs of interest?
No. '

If no survey was conducted, would the state permit a survey to be conducted

prior to roltout?
No.

To clarify the statement today, the state could decide to select individual
products from different vendors and not necessarily look to select one vendor.

proposal to provide all products?
Yes.

Can the staie gauge the participation from the unions? Can the state provide a
list of unions? '

- No. The Comumonwealth will not provide a list of the unions.

Broker Costs — Is this asking for our pro}eéted expenses for this bid and the

" Commonwealth only?

Yes. : : : )

Auto and Home Insurance dates are not determined by gender and age alone,
so the rate card does not apply to our program. Is there an alternative means

by which we can illustrate our rates?

Yes. The rate card may be modified as required to convey a rate structure that

would apply to your product offering.

Can we geta copy of the vendor sign-in list?
Yes; itis attachedras part of this Addendum #2.

The Purpose Statement describes a need to have benefits communicated,
enrolled, and administered. Without face-to-face meetings, this will be difficult
to fund. If features and benefits can be demonstrated, will face-to-face -
meetings be considered? '

~No. Individual face-to-face meetings will not be allowed during work hours.

How many payroll slots does the state have to accommodate these pre- and

posi-tax deductions’?
The number of slots will be determined based upon the benefits offered.

Can costs be shown in a “money purchase” (i.e $10 per bi-weekly deduction)
mode, or "benefit purchase” (i.e $25,000 life insurance) mode?
Please refer to section 1I-10 of the RFP.

Can you identify the representatives of this RFP evaluation board?
No.

Why were all proposals from a previous RFP issued in 2005 rejected?
The Commonwealth reserves the right to 1e;ect any proposal, in the best
interest of the Commonwealth.
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Addendum #2 Questions
January 25, 2007

140. Will all departments of the Commonwealth of PA be required to partlmpate in all
of the voluntary platforms?
No. Participation is voluntary at the employee level.

141. Do any departments currently solicit benefits independentty of the
Commonwealth?
Yes. They are not covered by this RFP.

142. 1110 h) - Broker Costs. Are these specific to this RFP or are they on a book of
business basis?
Broker costs to be provided are specific to this RFP.

143, Please confirm how the proposals will be graded. An overall score by vendor
_ for technical portion blended with disadvantaged business score®, creates an

overall vendor score. This is then blended with the cost score by product.
*Enterprise Zone Small business & domestfic wotkforce

Each comporent of the proposal has a weight assigned to it. The sum of the
individual components will be used to determine an overall score.

144, 1-26 (b&c) —How does their prohibition relate to a broker proposing a carrier's
product, when the carrier is also an offeror?
In this case, the broker is the offeror.

145. What "documentation” is required to substantiate client experience?
Flease refer to section I1-4 of the RFP.

146. Do you require a consolidated billing statement that inciudes all products or
would you accept a separate billing statement for each product?
Payment will be conducted by payroll deduction. Vendors will send an
electronic interface to the Commonwealth and the Commonwealth will deduct

an appropriate amount. There will be no invoice.

147. Can you explain the disability portion of your pension plan and when
employees can access these funds?
Information on disability is available on the SERS website at the following
address:
http:/ /www.sers.state. pa.us/sers/lib/ sers / publications/ DisabilityRetirernent

 Guide2006.pdf

148. Are the permanent part-time hours typically based on a 40-hour work week?
For some employees, permanent part-time hours are based on a 40-hour per
week work schedule. For other employees, permanent pa1t-ttme hours are
based on a 37.5 hour per week work schedule,

148. Would you consider integrating the voluntary benefits into your core enroliment

process’?
No.
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150.

151,

152,

Addendum #2 Questions
January 25, 2007

When will we have the final commitment on the participation of the union
members? This is critical for underwriting.
Flease refer to Question #3.

Wil January 1 be changed as the age date for life insurance to December 31 to
protect the tax integrity of any optional life offer? This conflicts with the desire

to avoid tax risk to the employee?
The Commonwealth will change the age date for life insurance to Decernber 31

to protect the tax integrity of any optional life offer. Please refer to Addendum
#2 for additional information. : :

To what extent do the employees covered under this RFP participate in the

PEBTF?

Almost 100%. Enlisted State Police employees (4,300 employees) have their
own plan coverage and do not participate in the PEBTF.
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Functlona] Specsﬂcatlon for Interface Programs

SAMPLE ONLY - NOT FOR PRODUCTION

SAMPLE ONLY

— NOT FOR PRODUCTION

Standard headcr record structure for HR Qutbound Files should be used. Format is as follows:

FIELD LENGTH . COMMENTS/SAMPLE VALUE
Record Type 6 Characters “HEADER” -

Create Date 8 Characters “02202002” (MMDDYYYY)
Create Time ‘6 Characters “130101” (HHEMMSS)

As of Date 8 Characters “01312002” (MMDDYYYY)
Contact Person Name | 40 Characters ‘Janice Sage”

Telephone Nmmber 10 Characters “71770591 547

'Email Address 25 Characters “;sage(@state.pa.us”

File Name 40 Characters “INTF 0442, VOL.BEN.OUT. DAT”
Record Count 8 Characters “00000230” (will include all the data

records and head record)

Copyright 2001 by KPMG Consulting, All rights reserved.
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Functional Specification for Interface Programs

SAMPLE ONLY - NOT FOR PRODUCTION

!

Detail Record format: :

SAMPLE ONLY — NOT FOR PRODUCTION

FIELD DESCRIPTION FIELD SIZE COMMENTS

Company Code o X(10) From selection screen
Personnel Area X4 . | PO00I-WERKS

Personnel Number 198 POC0-PERNR

Filler X(22) Spaces

Employee Last Name X(40) P0002 - NACHN

Employee First Name X{40) P0002 - VORNA

Employee Middle Name X(25) P0002 - MIDNM

Employee Name Suffix X(15) P0002 - NAMZU )
Deduction Amount — Pre-Tax 15 (Amount field) BETRG - Amount for Pre-Tax

Wage Type(s) (6EA3) from the
o , RT table multiplied by -1.
' Example: 12345678901245+

Fee 15 (Amount field) BETRG — Amount for Pre-Tax
Wage Type(s) from the RT table
multiplied by -1. since we
currently have no Fee Wage
Type(s) this amount would
always be: 00000000000000+

Deduction Amount — Post-Tax | 15 (Amount field) BETRG — Amount for Pre-Tax
: Wage Type(s) (6EA4) from the

RT table multiplied by -1.

Example: 12345678901245+

Deduction Amount — 15 (Amount field) BETRG — Amount for Pre-Tax
Administrative Fee Wage Type(s) (6EAS) from the
RT table multiplied by -1.
Example: 12345678501245+

Pay Date 8 Date PAYDT from VERSC in PCL2

Copyright 2001 by KPMIG Consulting. All rights reserved, . Page: 2 0T 2
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' RIDER NUMBER ONE
TO GROID? INSURANCE CONTRACT NUMBER LG~91475-PA D

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION AND’
THE PRUDENTIAL INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA

This Rider modifies Group Insurance Contract Number LG-91475-PA (Group Contract)

executed between the Prudential Insurance Compeny of Americe (Contractor); Federal 1D
Number 22-1211670, and the Comonwealth of Permsylvania. (Commonwealth), effective July

1, 2000

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Commonwealth has need for the services of an insuring organization;

and

- WEHEREAS, the Commonwealth issued a request for proposal (RFP) OA-PER-GLI-99
O for insurance services on October 15, 1999, and the Contractor responded to the RFP and set
forth the services the Contractor would like to provide in its technical proposal, whick technical

proposal is incorporated by reference into the Agresment; and .

WHEREAS, the Commonwealth has the awthority to contract for basic life insurance
coverage as specified in law, and for supplemental insurance as delegated by specified agencies

not under the Govemor sjurisdiction; and

WHERFEAS, the Commonwealth has eveluated the Contractor’s Tochmoal Proposal and
determined that the Contractor has available all qualified personnel; facilities, materials, and
software necessary to provide the basic and supplemental insurance coveraore identified in their

Technical Proposal; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to agree to the terms and condmons which are spec1ﬁed n
the aforementioned documents and which are hereinafter set forth irr the following sections of
this Rider to the Group Contract; ’ _

SECTION TITLE ' PAGE .
A '~ CONTRACTUAL GOVERNANCE . 2
B . FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS 2

(-) | 83500
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‘Pags 2
C PERFORMANCE STANDARDS & GUARANTEES = 4
D * . OTHER CLAUSES,; TERMS, AND CONDITIONS 6
E STANDARD CLAUSES, TERMS, AND CONDITIONS 7

NOW, THEREFORE, for and i consideration of the foregoing premises and mutual
promises hereinafter set forth, the Parties hereto agree, with the intention of being legelly bound
as follows: ' '

SECTION A CONTRACTUAL GOWRNAN CE

The Contractor 8 GToup Contract and Group Insurance Certificates (Certificates) incorporate
the standard terms and conditions under which iife insurance benefits, including
supplemental life insurance benefits, will be paid to the bensficiaries or estates of State
employees covered under the Contractor’s agreement with the Commonwealth. Howsver,
notwithstanding any language in the Coniractor’s Group Contract or nsurance Ceriificates,
the language contained in the Confractor’s Technical Proposal to the Commonwealth’s
Regquest for Proposals to provide group life insurance benefits to'Commonwealth employees;
in any presentation or representations mads in writing to the Commonwealth by the
Contractor; and in this Rider shall be the governing languags. Any conflicts arising from
language contained in the Group Contract or Insurance Certificates shall be resolved in favor
of language contained in the Contractor’s Technical Proposal, any written presentations or
representations by the Contractor io the Commonwealth, or this Rider.

SECTION B - FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS

1. The Group Contract between the Commonwealth and the Contractor is fully insured and non-
participating, The premium rate to be paid by the Commonwealth to the Contractor will be
$.244 per $1,000 of coverage per employee per month for the initial three contract years,
specified as July 1, 2000 to June 30, 2001; July 1, 2001 to June 30, 2002; and July 1, 2002 to .
June 30, 2003. No premium rate increase will be allowed duting the initial three contract
years unless required by law or Pennsylvania Insurance Department regulation or unless the
amount of insurance is altered to an extent that it increases or decreases the Confractor’s risk
by 10 percent (10%). Regardless of the reason for a proposed increase in premium rafes, the
‘Contractor and the Commonwealth agres to enter good faith negotiation concerning any
inorease prior to implementation.

2. The Contractor agrees that should the contract be extended for a fourth and fifth year, any

premium rate increases applied in contract years four and five, specified as July 1, 2003 to
June 30, 2004 and July 1, 2004 to June 30, 2005, will be limited to a maximum of 10 percent
(10%) unless reqmred by law or Pennsylvania Tnsurance Department regulation or unless the
amount of inserance is altered to an extent that it mgmﬂcanﬂy alters the Contractor’s risk, -

83500
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Regardless of the reason for a proposed increase in premiﬁm rates, the Contractor and the
Commonwealth agree to enter good faith negotiation and jointly agree to any prermum
mcrease prior t6 implementation,

3. The Commonweslth agrees fo convey eligibility information in an electronic transmission
(data feed) to the Contractor by the 10™ of a contract month, or the first working day
thereafter. The initial contract month shall begin on July 1, 2000.

4, The Contractor agrses to bill the CommonWealm for coverage classes prowded accordingto ..
the matrix identified as Attachment 1 to this Rider by the 20" of & contract month, or the first

working day thereafter

5," The Commonwealth dgrees-to issue payment to the Contractor by the last working day of the

~ contract month for smployses listed as eligible in the data feed. During a contfract month,
neither the Contractor nor the Commonwealth will make retroactive adjustments to eligibility
or payment because of employment status changes affecting eligibility that occur after the
data feed. The status of such individuals will be accounted for in the following comifract
month’s data feed, Ifthe Commonwealth fails to pay the required premium payment by the
last day of the month, the Commonwealth nay be lable for interest charges on the unpaid

preminm payment,

6. The Coniractor will refund to the Commonwealth all overpaid premiums due to retroactive
termination of an employee’s insurance as & result of labor erbitration, collective bargaining,
or other legal remedy or settlement entered into by the Commonwealth. -The Commonwealth -
will pay to the Contractor premiums due for retroactive coverage resuliing ffom similar

situations,

7. Temporary employess who become permanertt employees and who have already worked for
the Commionwealth for 90 days or longer will immedietely be eligible for the regular and
supplemental life insurance coverage specified in the Group Contract. Temporary employees
who becoms permanent employees otherwise will not be eligible for the regular and
supplemental life insurance coverage-specified in the Group Contract until they have

completed their 90" day of employment.

8. The Contractor will issue & commiission payment of $88,000 to the Commonwealth by the end
of February of each yvear of the contract. This commission payment will be issued to the )
. Secretary of the Department of General Services, who will forward payment to the Offioe of

Administration.
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SECTION C - PEMORMNGE STANDARDS and GUARANTEES

Timeliness

1.

The Confractor agress that, in part, work performed on behalf of the Commonwealth, the
independent agencies, employees, and their dependents will be judged according to following
performance standards using the specified methods for monitoring those standards and, for
failure to meet of exceed the standards, to have the monies specified efther deducted from
future payments or returned fo the Commonwealth:

i

Contractor will answer no less than 85% of telephone calls within 20 seconds or less and will
maintain an average-spesd-to-answer of 20 seconds or less, If'the Contractor fails to mest
this performance guarantee, the Contractor will pay $20,000 per year to the Commonwealth.,
Results will be measured guarterly with the quarterly at risk amount being $5 000,

Contractor will maintain a cail abandonment rate of less than 2%, Ifthe Contractor fails to
meet this perfonnance guarantes, the Contractor will pay $10,000 per year to the
Commonwealth Results will be measured quarterly with the quarterly at risk amouni being
$2,500. The Commonwealth acknowledges that on-hold time is not monitored and will not
be used to determine the call abandonment rate.

Beginning 90 days after the contract effective date, the Contractor will process employee
inguiries or reguests, including requests for beneficiary information, within 2 business days.
Contractor will process all other inquiries end changes within 2 business days. Ifthe
Contractor fails to meet this performance guarantee, the Contractor will pay $10,000 per year

to the Commonwealth, Resulis will be measured quarterly with the quarterly at risk amount
being $2,500.

Contractor will respond in writing to affected parties on all transactions related to the death of
an. employee or disabled employee that requite additional information within three weeks
from the date of inifial request. Coniractor will issue a written past-due notice when direct
bill payment is not received within 15 days of the due date. Contractor will issue a written
cancellation of coverage siotice to direct bill employees on the 45" day after the initial due
date.

Confractor will apply the Commonwealth’s data feed to its eligibility system within 2 days of
receipt. The Commonweslth acknowledges that for this standard to be applicable the
Contractor must receive the data feed by the expected date. The Commonwealth also
acknowledges that the Contractor must be in possession of timely and acceptable information
from the independent agencies or their information will not be included in the performance
evaluation. Ifthe Confractor fails to meet this performance guarantee the Contractor will pay
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$10,000 per year to the Commeonwealth, Results will be measured quartesly with the
quarterly at risk-amount being $2,500.

6. Contractor agrees that 95% of clean death cleims will be paid within 5 business days of

receipt by the claim arez and that 99% will be processed within 10 business days of receipt by
the claim area. If the Contractor fails to mest this performance guaraniee, the Contractor will
pay $20,000 per year to the Commeonwealth, Results will be measured quarterly with the
quarterly at risk amount being $3, DOO

7. When applicable, Contractor will issue 2 written claim denial to affected beneficiaries ot -

" estates within 5 days of & decision. Information regarding appeal rights and the Contractor’s

appeal process will be included with the claim denial. |

Accuracy

1.

Contractor specifies that 99% of all financial transactions will be processed correctly. Ifthe
Contractor fails to meet this performance guarantee the Conitactor will pay $20,000 per year
1o the Commonwealth, Resulis will be measured by reviewing Contractor’s total “book-of-
bustness” for % of dollars processed correctly. In addition, Contractor agrees that 10% of the

" Commonwealth’s claims will be sudited quarterly to determine the accuracy of each financial

transaction: Results will be measured quarterly with the quarterly at risk amount being
$5,000. -

Confractor specifies that 95% of all procedural transactions (defined as an employee record)
will be processed correctly. If the Contractor fails to meet this performance guatantee the .
Contractor will pay $20,000 per year to the Commonwealth, Results will be measured
quarterly with the quarterly at risk amount being $5,000.

Completensss

Contractor agrees to respond to all written complaints within 1 business day and that all
complaints will be resolved within 10 business days. Contractor agrees that results will be

measured guarterly.

Customer Satisfzction

Contractor agrees to'an 80%-+ good or excellent customer satisfaction ranking with 1% or
less in the unacceptable or poor category, If the Contractor fails to meet these performance
guarantess the Contractor will pay $20,000 to the Commonwealth. To determine customer
satigfaction, Contractor agrees to randomly survey 10% of Commonwealth participants’
monthly calls to determine satisfaction level. Survey population will include employees or
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family members, benefit administration staff and other parties designated by the
Commonwealth that participate in the life administration process. The Contractor will report
the survey resulis to the Commonwealth’s group life insurance office on a quarterly basis
with the quarterly at risk amount being $5,000.

Andity

Contractor agrees that the benefits and services provided are subject to independent audit and
that if such andits detenmine that the Confractor has failedto perform satisfactorily, the
Contractor will pay $20,000 per year to the Commonwealth, The Contractor further agrees to
correct any deficiencies in the level of service'to which the Commonwealth and the
Contractor have agreed.

Reporting and Disclosure

Contractor agrees to quarterly reporting and disclosure of the facts and circumstances of the
administration of the Commonwealth’s group life insurance prograra and the independent
agencies’ supplemental life insurance programs based on statistical analysis and the
documentation of performance as agresd to under prior sections of this Rider, These reports
and disclosures will be provided within 30 days of the end of a contract quarter. Reports and
disclosures shall include information for the current quarter, ssparate information for the
preceding quarters of the coniract year, if any, and combined information for the contract
year. Sample reporis for the items listed above are included with this Rider as Attachment 2.

SECTION D-OTHER CLAUSES, TERMS, & CONDITIONS
1. Contractor will mail Certificates to each insured employeé.

2, The Commonwealth may, from time to {ime, adjust incorrect data that had previously been

{ provided to the Coniractor. In so doing, the coverage or termination effective date of an
employee’s insurance may be altered, Ifthe effective date of an employee’s coverage is
altered to allow retroactive coverage and if a covered death claim has ensued in the interim,
the Confractor will pay the claim. However, the Commenwealth will be responsible for any
premiums owed for the retroactive coverage. If the effective date of the employee’s coverage
is altered to allow retroactive ternination of coverags, the Contractor will reimburse the
Commonvwealth for all overpaid premiums, Once premiums are refunded fo the
Commonwealth, the Contractor’s legal obligation for claims payment for the terminated
insurance shall cease unless the employee or former employee, upon being provided with
appropriate notics, elects to convert the terminated insurance amount within the meaning
established by the Confractor’s Certificates.
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3. Eligibility for coverage under this contract ceases when an employee is no longer in an active

pay status. For purposes of this contract, active pay status includes those periods of leave’
during which the Commeonwealth continuss to make contributions on behelf of an affected
employee. For purposes of this contract, an employee approved for disability life insurance
shall also be considered to be in an active pay. status. An employee whose coverage would
ordinarily cease because they are no longer in an active pay status (as defined above) but who
-continues 1o be an employes within the rules established and so designated to the Contractor
by the Commonwealth, may continue their coverage under this program by paying the
premiums, Failure to make the required premium payments on the part of such an employee

. will be cause for termination of coverage. .

SECTION E- STANDARD CLAUSES, TERMS, & CONDITIONS
1. TERM OF CONTRACT

A. The term of the Agresment between the Coramonwsalth and the Contractor shall commence
on the Effective Date (as defined below) and shall end on the Expiration Date identified in
the Group Contract or-as specified in the Request for Proposal, subject to the other provisions

" of the Agreement or these “Required Clauses.” The Effective Date shall be fixed by the
Contracting Officer after the Agresment has been fully executed by the Contractor and by the
Commonwealth and all approvals required by Conimonwealth contracting procedures have
been obtained. The Agreement shall not be a legally binding Agreement until after the
Effective Date is affixed and the fully-sxscuted Agreement has been sent to the Coniractor,
The Contracting Officer shall issue g writien Notice to Procsed to the Contractor directing the
Confractor to start performance on a date which is on or after the Effective Date. The
Contractor shall not start the performance of any work prior to the date set forth in the Notice
1o Proceed and the Commonwealth shall not be Lable to pay the Contractor for any service or
work performed or expenses incurred before the date set forth in the Notice to Proceed. No
agency employes has the authority to verbally direct the commencement of any work under
this Agreement. The Commonweslth reserves the right, upon notice to the Contractor, to
extend the term. of the Agreement for up to three (3) months upon the same terms and
conditions, This will be utilized to preverit a lapse in Coniract coverage and only for the time
necessaty, up to three (3) months, fo enter into a new Agreement.

B. For purposes of the Agresment between the Commonwcalth and the Prudential Insurance
Company of America, the Contracting Officer shall be the Commonwealth’s Deputy
Secretary for Employee Relations or any other person as designated in writing by the
Commonwealth’s Secretary of Adminisiration. The Deputy Secretary for Employee
Relations or other designated person shall serve as Contracting Officer at the pleasure of the
Secretary of Administration (Secretary) and may be removed and replaced at the Secretary’s

sole discrstion.
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C. Notwithstanding the aforementioned specification of the Deputy Secretary for Employee
Relations or other person designated by the Secretary to be the Contracting Officer for this
Agreement, ordinary contacts regarding services to be provided under this agreement will be
addressed though the staff of the Commonwealth’s Employee Benefits Division.

2. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

In performing the services required by the Group Contract and this Rider, the Contractor will
act as an independent confractor and not as an employee or agent of the Commonwealth,

3, COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations and
local ordinances in the performance of the duties required by the Group Contract and this
Rider.

4., ENVIRONMENTAL PROVISIONS

In the performance of the duties required under the Group Contract and this Rider, the
Contractor shall minimize pollution and shall strictly comply with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations,

5. POST-CONSUMER RECYCLED CONTENT

Except as specifically waived by the Department of General Services in writing, any products
which are provided to the Commonwealth as a part of the performance of the duties required
under the Group Coniract or this Rider must mest the mininmum percentage levels for total
recycled content as specified in Exhibits A-1 through A-2 to these Required Clauses terms
and conditions.

s

6. COMPENSATION/EXFENSES

“The Contractor shall be required io perform the specified services at the price(s) quoted in the
Group Contract or this Rider, All services shall be performed within the time period(s)
specified in the Agreement. The Contractor shall be compensated onty for work performed to
the satisfaction of the Commonwealth. The Contractor shall not be allowed or paid travel ot
per diem expenses except as specifically set forth in the Agreement.
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7. INVOICES

" The Commonwealth agrees to provide eligibility information to the Contractor by the 10% of
each month, The Contractor shell send an itemized invoice to the “Provide Service and Bill
To” address by the 20™ of each month, The invoice should include only amoumts due under
the Group Contract, The Group Contract inquiry nurmber shall be included on all invoices.
The Commonvwealth agrees fo pay the amount specified on the Contractor’s invoice, subject
to audit verification, by the last working day of each month that the Agreement is in force,

except on those occasions specified below,

.8. PAYMENT

A The Commonwealih shall put forth reasonable efforts to make payment by the requzred
payment date. The required payment date is: () the date on which payment is due under the
terms, of the Agresment (b) thirty (30) days after & propet invoice actually is received at the
“Provide Service and Bill To” address if a date on which payment is due is not specified in
the. Agreement (4 “proper” invoice is not received until the Commonwealth accepts the
service as satisfactorily performed); or (c) the payment date specified on the invoice if later
than the dates established by (2) and (b) above, Payment may be delayed if the payment
amount on an invoiceis not based upon the price(s) as stated in the Agreement. If any
payment is not made within fifteen (15) days after the required payment date, the
Commonwealth may pay interest as determined by the Secretary of Budget in accordancs
with Act No. 266 of 1982 and regulations promulgated pursuant thereto, Payment should not
be construed by the Contractor as acceptance of the service performed by the Contractor. The
Commonwealth ressrves the right to conduct further {esting and inspection after payment, but
within a reasonable time after performance, and to reject the serviee if such post payment
ltesting or inspection discloses a defect or a failure to meet specifications. The Contractor
agrees that the Commonwealth may set off the amount of any state tax liability or other
obligation of the Contractor or its subsidiaries to the Commonwealth against any payments
due the Contractor under any Agreement with the Commonwealth,

B. The Commonwealth shall have the option of using the Cornmonwealﬂl purchasing card to

make purchases under the Agreement or purchase order. The Commonwealth’s purchasing

 card is similar to a credit card in that there will be a small fee which the Contractor will be
required to pay and the Contractor will receive payment directly from the card issuer rather
than the Commonwealth. Any and all fees related to this type of payment are the
responsibility of the Contractor. In no case will the Commonwealth allow increases in prices
to offset credit card fees paid by the Contractor or any other charges incurred by the
Contractor, unless specxﬁcally stated i in the terns of the Agreement or purchase order,
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9. "I‘AXES

The Commonwealth is exempt from all excise taxes imposed by the Internal Revenue Setvics
and has accordingly registered with the Internal Revenue Service to make tax-free prwchases
under Registration No. 23740001-K. With the exception of purchases of the following items,
no exemption certificates are required and none will be issued: undyed diese] fuel, tires,
trucks, gas-guzzler emergency vehicles, and sports fishing equipment, The Commonwealth is
also exempt from Permsylvania state sales tax, local sales tax, public transportation assistance
taxes and fees and vehicle rental tax. The Department of Revenue regulations provide that
exemption certificates are not required for sales made to governmental entities and none will
be issusd. Nothing in this paragraph is meant to exempt a construction contractor from the
payment of any of these texes or fees which are required fo be paid with regpect to the
purchase, use, rental, or lease of tangible personal property or taxable services used or
transferred in connection with the petformance of a construction Agreement.

10. WARRANTY

The Conttactor wartants that all services performed by the Contractor, its agents and
subcontractors shall be frse and clear of any defects in workmanship or materials, Unless
otherwise stated in the Agreement, all services and parts are warranted for a period of one
year following completion of performence by the Contractor and acceptance by the

% o Commonwealth, The Coniracior shall correct any problem with the service and/ox replace any

| ' defective part with a part of equivalent or superior guality without any additional cost to the

‘ ' Commonwealth. :

11, YEAR 2000 COMPLIANCE

The Contractor represents and warrants that each hardware, software and firmware product
delivered (or service pexformed) under the Agreement, including enhancements, shall be gble
fo accutately process, provide and/or receive date/time data (including, but not limited to,
calculating, comparing and sequencing) from, into and between the 20th and 21st centuries
and the year 1999 and 2000, including leap year calculations, when used in accordance with
the product documentation provided by the Contractor, provided that all listed or unlisted

. products (e.g. hardwaze, softwars, firmware, etc.) used in combination with such product
properly exchange date/time data with it. No bardware, software, firmware or service
provided under the Agreement shall change the status of a hardware, software and finnware
product from Year 2000 compliant to Year 2000 noncompliant., The Contractor must notify
the Commonwealth of any Year 2000 noncompliant hardware, software and firmware
product located by the Contractor during the course of performance of the Agresment. The
Contractor shall not deliver any third-party hardware, software, firmrware or service to the
Commonwealth which has not been represented and warranted in writing by the third-party

83500 :
AMD 5001




O

Page 11

manufacturer to be Year 2000 compliant, as described above. The Contractor shall pass
through the thizd-party representation and warranty from the third-party manufacturer to the
Commonwealth. Any modifications or changes made by the Commonwealth or any of its
third parties to any hardware, software, or firmware provided under the Agresment that alters
Year 2000 compliance shall void the Year 2000 warranty of the product. This Year 2000
Compliance representation and warranty shall be in effect until the later of December 31,
2002 or the termination of the Agreement. In any event this representation and warranty shall
survive termination of the Agreement and shall run until December 31, 2002, In no event will
the acceptance by the Commonwealth of any hardware, software or firmware product or
service delivered to the Commonwealth, by or through the Confractor, or any paymert by the -
Commonwealth to the Contractor under the Agreement limit the effectivensss or survzval of
this Year 2000 Compliance representation and Warranty ‘

12. PATENT, COPYRIGHT, AN]) TRADEMARK INDEMNITY

The Contractor wattants that it is the sole owner or author of, or has entered into a suitable
legal agreement concerning either: a) the design of any produet or process provided or used in
the performance of the Agreement which is covered by a patent, copyright, or trademark
registration or other right duly authorized by state or federal law or b) any copyrighted matter
in any report document or other material provided to the commonwealth under the
Agreement, The Contractor shall defend any suit or proceeding brought against the
Commonwealth on account of any alleged petent, copyright or trademark infringement in the
United States of any of the products provided or used in the performance of the Contract,

~ This is upon condition that the Commonwealili shall provide prompt notification in writing

. of such suit or proceeding; full right, authorization and opportumity to conduct the defense
thereof; and full information and all reasonable cooperation for the dafense of same. As
principles of governmental or public law are involved, the Commonwealth may parficipate in
or choose to conduct, in its sole discretion, the defenss of any such action. Ifinformation and
assistance are furnished by the Commonweglth at the Contractor’s written request, it shall be
at the Contractor’s expense, but the responsibility for'such expense shall'be only that within
the Coniractor’s written authorization. The Contractor shall inderanify and hold the
Commonwealth harmless from all damages; costs, and expenses, including attorney’s fees

* that the Contractor or the Commonwcalth may pay or incur by reason of any infringement or

violation of the rights occumng to any holder of copyright, trademark, or patent interests and
rights in any products provided or used in the pexformance of the Agreement. If any of the '
products provided by the Contractor in such suit or proceeding are held to constitute
infringement and the use is enjoined, the Contractor shall, at its own expense and at its
option, either procure the right to continue use of such infringement pro ducts, replace them
with non-infringement equal performance products or modify them so that they are no longer
infringing, If the Contractor is unable to do any of the preceding, the Contractor agrees to
remove all the equipment or software which are obtained contemporaneously with the -
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infringing product, or, at the optlon of the Commonwealth, only those items of equipment or
software which are held to be infringing, and to pay the Commonwealth: 1) any amounts paid
by the Commonwealth towards the purchase of the product, less straight line depreciation; 2)
any license fes paid by the Commonwealth for the use of any software, less an amount for the
period of usage; and 3) the pro rata portion of any maintenance fee representing the time
remaining in any period of maintenance paid for. The obligations of the Contracior under this
paragraph continue without time Iimit. No costs or expenses shall be incurred for the accoumt
of the Contractor without its written consent.

OWNERSHIP RIGHTS

The Commonwealth shall have unrestricted authority to reproducs, distribute, and use any
submitted report, data, or material, and any software or modifications and any associated
documentation that is designed or developed and delivered to the Commonwéalth as part of
the performance of the Agreement,

ASSIGNMENT OF ANTITRUST CLATMS

The Coniractor and the Commonwealth recognize that in aciual economic practice, -
overcharges by the Contractor’s suppliers resulting from violations of state or federal antitrust
laws are in fact botne by the Commonvwealth, As part of the consideration for the award of
the Agreement, and infending 1o be legally bound, the Contractor assigns to the.
Commonwsalth all right, title and interest in and to any claims the Contractor now has, or
may acquire, under state or federal antitrust laws relating to the products and services which
are the subject of this Agreement, -

HOLD HARMLESS PROVISION

The Contractor shall hold the Commonwealth harmlsss from and indemnify the
Commonwealth against ary and all claims, demands and actions bassd upon or arising cut of
any activities performed by the Contractor and its employees and agents under this '
Agreement and shall, at the request of the Commonwealth, defend any and all actions brought
apgainst the Commonwealth based upon any such claims or demands.

16. AUDIT PROVISIONS

23500

The Commonweslth shall have the right, at reasonable times and at a site designated by the
Commonwealth, to audit the books, documents and records of the Contractor io the extent
that the books, dosuments and records relate to costs or pricing data for the Agreement, The
Contractor agrees to maintain records which will support the prices charged and costs
incurred for the Agreement. The Contractor shell preserve books, documents, and records
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that relate to costs ar pricing data for the Agreement for a period of three (3) years from date
of final payment, The Contractor shall give full and free access to all tecords to the
Commonwealth and/or their suthorized répresentatives. .

17, DEFAULT

A, The Commonwealth may, subject fo the provisions of Paragraph 18, Force Majeure, and in
addition to its other rights under the Agreement, declare the Confractor in default by written
notice thereofto the Contractor, and terminate (as provided in Paragraph 19, Termination .
Provisions) the whole or any part of this Agresment for any of the following reasons:

1) Failure to begin work within the time specified in the Agreement or as otherwise

specified;

2) Failure to pexform the work with sufficient laboz, equipment, or material to insure the

completion of the specified work in accordance with the Agreement terms ;

3) Unsatisfactory performance of the work;

4) Pailure or refusal to rsmove matezial, ar remove and replace any work rajacted as

defective or unsafisfactory,

: '5) Discontinuance of wotk without approval;
O 6) Failure to resume work, which has been discontinued, within a reasonable time after
nctice to do sg; :

7) Insolvency or bankruptcy; ,

8) Assignment made for the benefit of creditors;

9) Failure or refusal within 10 days after written notice by the Contractmg Officer, to
make payment ot show cause why payment should not be made, of any amommts due for
materials furnished, labor supplied or performed, for equipment rentals, or for uiility
services rendered;

10) Failure fo protect, to repair, or to make good any damage or injury io property; or

K) Breach of any provision of this Agreement. :

B. In the event that the Commonwealfh terminates this Agreement in whole orin partas -
prov1dad in Subparegraph A. above, the Commonwealth may procurs, upon such terms and
in such manner as it determines, services similar or identical to those so terminated, and the
Contractor shall be lisble to the Commonwealth for any reesonabile excess costs for such
similar or identical servicss included within the terminated part of the Agreement. -

C. Ifthe Agresment is teminated as provided in Subparagraph A. above, the Commonwealth, in
addition to any other rights provided in this paragraph, may require the Contractor to transfer
title and deliver immediately to the Commonwealth in the manner and to the extent directed
by the Issuing Office, such partially completed wark, including, where applicable, reports,
working papers and other documentation, as the Contractor has specifically produced or
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specifically acquired for the performance of such part of the Agreement as has been
terminated. Except as provided below, payment for completed work accepted by the
Commonwealth shall be at the Confract price. Except as provided below, payment for -
partially completed work including, where applicable, reports and working papers, delivered
to and accepted by the Commonwealth shall be in an amount agreed upon by the Contractor
and Contracting Officer, The Commonwealth may withhold from amounts otherwise due the
Contractor for such completed or partially complsted works, such sum as the Contracting
Officer determines to be necessary to protect the Commonwealth against logs,

. D, The rights and remedies of the Commonwealth provided in this paragraph. shall not be

exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this -
Agreement, '

E. The Commonwealth’s failure to exercise.any rights or remedies provided in this paragraph
shall not be construred to be a waive_r by the Commonwealth of its rights and remedies in
regard to the event of default or any succeeding event of default.

F. Following exhaustion of the Contractor’s administrative remedies as set forth in Paragraph
20, the Contractor's exclusive remedy shall be to seek damages in the Board of Claims,

18. FORCE MAJEURE

Neither party will incur any liability to the other if' its performance of any obligation under
this Agreement is prevented or delayed by causes beyond its control and withott the fault or
negligence of either party. Causes beyond a party’s control may include, but are not limited
t0, acts of God or war, changes in controlling law, regulations, orders or the requirements of
any governmental entity, severe weather conditions, civil disorders, natural disasters, fire,
epidsmics end quarantines, general strikes throughout the trade, and feight embargoes. The
Contractor shall notify the Commonwealth orally within five (5) days and in writing within
ten (10) days of the date on which the Contrector becomes aware, or should have reasonably
become aware, that such causs would prevent or delay its performance. Such notification
shall (i) describe fully such ceuse(s) and its effect on performance, (ii) state whether
performance under the Agreement is prevented or delayed and (iif) if performance is delayed,
state a reasonable esiimate of the duration of the delay. The Contractor shall have the burden
-of proving that such cause(s) delayed or prevented its performance despite its diligent efforts
1o perform and shall produce such supporting documentation as the Commonwealth may
reasonably request. After receipt of such notification, the Commonwealth may elect either to
‘cancel the Agreement or to extend the time for performance as reasonably necessary to
compensate for the Contractor’s delay. In the event of a declared emergency by corapetent
governmental authorities, the Commmonwealth by notice to the Contractor, may suspend all or
" aportion of the Agreement,
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19, TERMINATION PROVISIONS

The Commonwealth has the right to terminate this Agreement for any of the follb‘\:ving
reasons. Termination shall be effective upon written notice to the Contractor.

A. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE: The Commonwealth shall have the right to
terminate the Agreement for its convenience if the Commonwealth determines
termination to bein its best interest. The Contractor shall be paid for work satisfactorily
completed prior o the effective date of the termination, but in no event shali the
Contractor be entlﬂed to recover loss of proﬁts

B. NON-APPROPRIATION: The Commonwealth’s obligation to make payments '
during any Commonwealth fiscal year succeeding the current fiscal year shall be subject
to availability and appropriation of funds, When funds (state and/or federal) are not
appropriated or otherwise made available o support continuation of performance in a
subsequent fiscal year period, the Commonwealth shall have the right to terminate the
. Agreement. The Comiractor shall be reimbursed for the reasonable value of any
: nonrecurring costs incurred but not amortized in the price of the supplies or services

O _ delivered under this Agreement, Such reimbursement shall not inclnde loss of profit, loss

of use of money, or administrative or overhead cosis, The rennbursement amount mzy be

paid from any appropriations available for that purpose.

C, TERMINATION FOR CAUSE: The Commonwealth shall have the right to ternyinate
the Agreement for Contractor defauit under Paragraph 17, Default, upon writien notice to
the Contractor. The Commonwealith shall also have the right, upon written notice to the

" Coniractor, to terminate the Agreement for other cause as specified in this Agreement or
by law. If it is later determined that the Commonwealth erred in terminating the
Agreement for cause, then, at the Commonweelth’s discretion, the Agresment shall be
deemed to have been terminated for convenisnce under the Subparagraph 19 A.

20. CONTRACT CONTROVERSIES

In theevent of a controversy or claim arising from the Agreement, the Contractor must,
within six months after the Gause of action accrues, file a written notice of controversy or
claim with the Contracting Officer for a determination. The Contracting Officer shall send
his/her written determination to the Contractor. The decision of the Contracting Officer shall
be final and conclusive unless, within thirty (30) days after receipt of such written
determination, the Contractor files a claim with the Commaonwealth Board of Claims.

o Pending a final judicial resolution of a controversy or claim, the Coniractor shall proceed

Q diligently with the performance of the Agreement in a manner consistent with the

.- 83500
AMD 5001




: Page 16

interpretation of the Contracting Officer and the Commonwealth shall compensate the
Contractor pursuant to the terms of the Agreement.

21, ASSIGNABILITY AND SUBCONTRACTING

A. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Paragraph 21, this Agreement shall be binding
upon the patties and their respective successors and assigns.

B. The Contractor shell not stboentract with any person or entity to perform all or any part of
the work to be performed under this Agresment without the prior written consent of the
Contracting Officer, which consent may be withheld at the sole and absolute discretion of the

Contracting Officer.

C. The Contractor may not assign, in whole or in part, this Agreement or its rights, duties,
obligations, or responsibilities hereunder without the prior written consent of the Contracting
Officer, which consent may be withhsld at the sole and absolute diseretion of the Contracting

Officer.

D. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Coniractor may, without the consent of the Contracting
Officer, assign its rights to payment to be recefved under the Agreement, provided that the
Contractor provides written notice of such assignment to the Contracting Officer together
with a written acknowledgement fiom the assignee that any such payments are subject to all

* of the terms and conditions of this Agresment,

E. For the purposes of this Agreement, the term “assign” shall include, but shall not be limited
to, the sale, gift, assignment, pledge, or other transfer of any ownership interest in the
Contractor provided, however, that the ferm shall not apply to the sale or other transfer of

stock of a publicly traded company.

F. Any assignment.consented to by the Contracting Officer shall be evidenced by a written
assignment agresment executed by the Contractor and its assignee in which the assignee
agrees to be legally bound by all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement and to assume
the duties, obligatidns, and responsibilities being assigned.

(. A change of name by the Confractor, following which the Contracior’s federal identification
number remains unchanged, shall not be considered to be an assignment hereunder, The

~ Coniractor shall give the Contracting Officer wriften notice of any such change of name.

22, NONDISCRIMINATION/SEXUAL HARASSMENT CLAUSE

During the term of the Agreement, the Contractor agrees as follows:
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A. Inthe hiring of any employees for the manufacture of supplies, performance of work, or any
other activity required under the Agresment or any subcontract, the Contractor, subeontractor
or any person acting on behalf of the Coniractor or subcontractor shall not by reason of
gender, race, creed, or color discriminate apainst any citizen of this Commonwealth who is
qualified and available to perform the work to which the employment relates.

‘B. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractof nar any person on their behalf shall in any
manner discriminate against or intimidate any employee involved in the mamifacture of
supplies, the performance of work or any other activity required under the Agreement on

account of gender, race, creed, or coler.

C. 'The Contractor and eny subcontractors shall establish and maintain a written sexual
harassment policy and shall inform their employees of the policy. The policy must contain a
notice that sexual harassment wﬂl not be tolerated and employees who practice it will be

disciplined.

D. The Contractor shall not discriminate by reason of gender, race, creed, or color against any
subcontractor or suppher who is qualified to perform the work to which the Agresment.

relates.

E. The Contractor and eech subcontractor shall firmish all necessary employment documents and
records to and permit access to its books, records, and accotmis by the contracting oifficer and
the Department of General Services’ Bureau of Coniract Administration and Business
Development for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with the provisions of this
Nondiscrimination/Sexual Harassment Clause. If the Contractor or any subcontractor does

" not possess documents or records reflecting the necessary information requested, it shall
furnish such information on reporting forms supplied by tha contracting ofucer or the Bureau

of Contract Administration end Business Development.

F., The Contractor shall include the provisions of this Nondiscrimination/Sexual Harassment
Clause in every subcontract so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor.

G. The Commonwealth may cancel or terminate the Agreement, and all money due or to become
due under the Agreement may be forfeited for a violation of the terms and conditions of this
Nendiscrimination/Sexuel Harassment Clause. In addition, the agency may proceed with
debarment or suspension and may place the Contractor in the Contractor Responsibility File.

23, CONTRACTOR INTEGRITY PROVISIONS

A. For purposes 0f f this clause oaly, the words “conﬁdentlal information,” “consent,”
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“confractor,” “financial interest,” and “gratuity” shall have the following definitions.

1) Confidential information means information that is not public knowledge, or
available to the public on request, disclosure of which would give an unfair, unethical,
or illegal advantage to another desiring to contract with the Commonwealth.

2) Consent means written permission signed by a duly authorized officer or employee of
the Commonwealth, provided that where the material facts have been disclosed, in
wiiting, by prequalification, bid, proposal, or contractnal terms, the Commonwealth
shall be desmed fo have consented by virtue of execution of this agresment,

3) Contractor means the individual or entity that has entered into the Agresment with the
Commonwealth, including directors, officers, partners, managers, key employees and
ownezs of more than a five percent interest,

4) Financial interest means:

a) Ownership of more than a five pereent interest in any business; or
b) Holding a position as an officer, director, trustee, partner, employes, or the like,
) or holding any position of management,

5) Gratuity means aty payment of more than nominal monetary value in the form of

cash, travel, entertainment, gifts, meals, lodging, loans, subscriptions, advances,
+ deposits of money, services, employment, or contracts of any kind.

B, The Caontractor shall maintain the highest standards of integrity in the performance of the
Agreement and shall take no action in viclation of state or federal laws, regulations, or other -
requirements that govern contracting with the Commonweatth,

* C. The Confractor shall not disclose to othets any confidential mformatlon gained by V1rtue of
the Agreement

D, The -Contraetor shall not, in connection with this or any other agreement with the
Commonweslth, directly, or indirectly, offer, confer, or agree fo confer any pecuniary benefit
on anyone as consideration for the decision, opinion, recommendation, vote, other exercise of
discretion, or violation of a known legal duty by any officer or employee of the
Commonwealth.

E, The Contractor shall not, in connection with this or any other agreement with the
Commonwealth, directly or indirectly, offer, give, or agres or promise to give to anyone any
gratuity for the bemefit of or at the direction or request of any officer or employee of the
Commonwealth.

F. Except with the consent of the Commonwealth, neither the Conttactor nor anyone in privity

with him or her shall accept or agree to accept from, or give or agres to give to, any person,
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any gratuity from any person in connection with the performance of WOlll‘k under the
Agreement except as provided therein.

G. Except with the consent of the Commonwealth, the Contractor shall not have & financial
interest in any other contractor, subcontractor, or supplier providing services, labor, or

material on this project.

H, The Contractor, upon being informed that any violation of these provisions Has oceurred or
may ocetrr, shall immediately notify the Commonwealth in writing.

L The Contractor, by execution of the Agreement and by the submission.of any bills or invoices
for paymant pursuant thersto, oarnﬁes and represents that he or she has not violated any of

these provisions.

J. The Cont’actcr, upon the inguiry or request of the Inspector General of the Comumonwealth or
any of that official’s agents or representatives, shafl provide, or if appropriate, make promptly
available for inspection or copying, any information of any type or form deemed relevant by
the Inspector General to the Contractor’s integrity or responsibility, as those terms are
defined by the Commonwealth’s statutes, regulations, or management directives. Such

. information may include, but shall not be limited to, the Contractor’s business or financial
records, documents or files of any type or form which refers to or concern the Agreement. .
Such information shall be retained by the Contractor for a period of three years beyond the
termination of the Agreement unless otherwise provided by law.

)

K. For violation of any of the above provisions, the Commonwealth may terminate this and any -
other agreemment with the Contractor, claim hquldated damages in an amount equal to the
value of anything received in breach.of these provisions, claim darmages for all expenses
incurred in obtaining ahother Coniractor to complete performance hersunder, and debar and
suspend the Contractor from doing business with the Commonwealth.

These rights and remedies are cumulative, and the use or nonuse of any one shall not
preclude the use-of all or any other, These rights and remedies are in addition to those the
Commonwealth may have under law, statute, regulation, or otherwise.

.24, CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY PROVISIONS -

A, The Confractor certifies, for itself and all its subconfractors, that as of the date of its .
“execution of'this Bid/Contract, that neither the Contractor, nor any subcontractors, nor any
suppliers are under suspension or debarment by the Commonwealth or any governmental
entity, instrumentality, or euthority and, if the Contractor cannot so certify, then it agrees to
submit, along with its Bid, a written explanation of why-such certification cannot be made.
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B. The Contractor also certifies, that as of the date of its executmn of thig Bld/C()ntract it has no
tax liabilities or other Commonwealth obligations.

C. The Contractor’s obligations pursnant to these provisions are ongoing from and after the
effective date of the Agreement through the termination date thereof, Accordingly, the
Contractor shall have an obligation to inform the Commonwealth if, at any time during the
term, of the Agreement, it becomes delinquent in the payment of taxes, or other
Commonwealth obligations, or if it or any of its subcontractors are suspended or debarred by
the Commonwealth, the federal government, or any other state or govetnmental entity. Such
notification shall be made within 15 days of the date of suspension or debarment.

The failure of the Contractot to notify the Commonwealth of its suspension or debarment by
the Commonwealth, any other state, or the federal government shall constitute an event of
default of the Agreement with the Commonwealth.

)

E, The Confractor agress to reimbuzse the Commonwealth for the reasonable costs of
investigation incurred by the Office of State Inspector General for investigations of the:
Contractor’s compliance with the terms of this or any other agreement between the
Contractor and the Commonwealth, which results in the suspension or debarment of the
Contractor, Such costs shall include, but shall not be limited to, salaries of investigators,
including overfime; travel and lodging expenses; and expert witness and documentary fees.
The Contractor shal! not be responsible for investigative costs for investigations that do not
result in the Contractor’s suspension or debarment.

F. The Contractor may obtain a current list of suspended and debarred Commonwealh
coniractors by either searchmg the internet at http {Frww, dgs state.pa.ns/debarment.hitm or
contacﬁng the:

Department of General Services
Office of Chief Counsel

603 North Office Building
Harrisburg, PA 17125
Telephone No. (717) 783-6472
FAX No. (717) 787-9138

25. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT
A, Pursuant to federal regulations promulgated under the authority of The Americans With

Disabilities Act, 28 C.F.R. § 35.101 et seq., the Contractor understands and agrees that it
shall not-cause any individual with a disability to be excluded from participation in this
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Agreement or from activities provided for under this Agreement on the basis of the disability.
As a condition of accepting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to comply with the '
“General Prohibitions Against Discrimination,” 28 C.F.R. § 35.130, and all other regulations
promulgated under Title II of The Americans With Disabilities Act which are applicable to

_ all benefits, services, programs, and activities provided by the Commonwezlth of
Pennsylvania through contracts with outside contractors.

B. The Contractor shall be responsible for and agrees to indernify and hold harmless the
. Commonwealth of Pennsylvania from all losses, damages, expenses, claims, demands, suits,
and actions brought by eny party against the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as a resuit of
the Contractor’s failure to comply with the provisions of subparagraph a above.

26. HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES ' | L

The Contractor shall provide information to the Commonwealth about the identity and hazards of
hazardous substances supplied or used by the Contractor in the performance of the Agreement.
The Contractor must comply with Act 159 of October 5, 1984, known as the “Worker and
Commumnity Right to Know Act” (the “Act”) and the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto at

4 Pa. Code Secnon 301 1 et seq.

A, Labeling, The Contractor shall insure that each individual product (as well as the cartoa,
container or package in which the product is shipped) of any of the following substances (as
defined by the Act and the regulations) suppiied by the Contractor is clearly labeled, tagged

- or marked with the information listed in Paragraph (1) through (4): )

1) Hazardous substances:
&) The chemical name or common name,
b) A hazard warning, and
c) The name, address, and telephone number of the manufacturer.

2) Hazardous mixfures:
g) The common narne, but if none exists, then the trade name,

b) The chemical or common name of special hazardous substances comprlslng

.01% ormore of the mixiure,
¢) The chemical or common name of hazardous substances consmimg 1. 0% or
more ofthe mixtuse, ‘
d) A hazard warning, and
. e) The name, address, and telephone number of the manufaotural
3) Single chemicals:
a) The chemical name or the common name,

'b) A hazard warning, if appropriate, and
¢) The name, address, and telephone number of the manufacturer.
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4) Chemical Mixtures: ,

a) The common name, but if nons exists, then the trade name,

b) A hazard warning, if appropriate, -

o) The name, address, and telephone number of the mannfacturer, and

d) The chemical name or common name of efther the top five substances by
volume or those substances consisting of 5.0% or more of the mixture. A
cominon name ot irade name may be used only if the use of the name more
easily or readily identifies the true natore of the hazardous substance,
hazardous mixture, single chemical, or mixture involved. Container labels shall
provide a warning as to the specific nature of the hazard arising from the
substance in the container,

The hazard warning shall be given in conformity with one of the nationally recognized
and aceepted systems of providing warnings, and hazard warnings shall be consistent
with one or more of the recognized systems throughout the workplace. Examples are:

- NFPA 704, Identification of the Fire Hazards of Materials,

- National Paint and Coatings Association: Hazardous Materials Identification System,
- American Society for Testing and Materials, Safety Alert Pictorial Chart.
- American National Standard Institute, Inc., for the Precautionary Labeling of Hazardous
Industrial Chemicals.

’ )
_ Labels must be legible and prominently affixed o and displayed on the product and the
carton, container, or package so that employees can easily identify the substance or
mrgture present therein.

B. Material Safety Data Sheet. The coniractor shall provide Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS)
with the information required by the Act and the regulations for each hazardouns substance or
hazardous mixiure, The Commonwealth must be provided an appropriate MSDS with the
inftial shipment and with the first shipment after an MSDS is updated or produot changed.
For any other chemiceal, the contractor shall provide an appropriate MSDS, if the
manufacturer, importer, or supplier produces or possesses the MSDS. The contractor shall

also potify the Commonwealth when a substance or mixiure is subjset to the provisions of the
Act, Material Safety Data Sheets may be attached to the carton contajner, or package mailed
to the Commonwealth at the time of shipment,

27.' COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES
The Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been emploved or retained to

solicit or secure the Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission,
percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, except bona fide employees or bona fide established
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commerclal or selling agencies maintained by the Contractor for the purpose of securing
business. For breach or violation of this warranty, the Commonwealth shall have the right to
terminate the Agreement without liability or in its discretion to deduct from the Agreement
price or consideration, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage,

brokerage, or contingent fee,

28, APPLICABLELAW - (

This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted and enforced in accordance with the
laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (without regard to any conflict of laws

provisions) end the decisions of the Pennsylvania courts, The Confractor consents to the
jurisdiction of any coust of the Comumonwealth of Pennsylvania and any federal courts in
Penmsylvania, waiving any-claim or defense that such forum is not convenient or proper. The
Contractor agrees that any such court shall have in personam jurisdiction over it, and .
consents 1o service of process in eny mannsr authorized by Pennsylvania law.

29, INTEGRATION

" The Agreement, inoluding all referenced docurnents, constitutes the entire agreement between
the parties. No agent, representative, employee or officer of either thé Commonwealth or the
Contractor has authonty to make, or has made, any statement, agreement or representation,

. oral or written, in connection with the Agreement, which in any way cen be deemed to
modify, add to or detract from, or otherwise change or alter its terms and conditions. No
negotiations between the parties, nor any custom or usage, shall be permitied to modify or
contradict any of the terms and conditions of the Agreement, No modifications, alterations,
changes, or waiver to the Agreement or any of its terms shall be valid or binding unless
accomplished by a written Rider signed by both parties. All such amendments will be made

usmg the appropriate Commonwealth form.,
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EXHIBIT A-1
RECYCLED CONTENTS PRODUCTS PROVISION
INSULATION

Any products provided to the Commonwealth as part of the contractor’s performance of this the
Agreement shall meet the minimum percentage levels for total recycled content and post-
consuner recyeled content as specified below and in Exhibits A-2 and A-3:

Material Type Material Type Percent by Weight
Cellulose Loose-Fill and Spray On ] 75% Posteonsumer Recovered Paper
FPerlite Composite Board 23% Posteonsumer Recoversd Paper
Plastic Rigld Foam, Polyisocyanurate/Palyurethane:
Rigid Foam ' " 9% Recovered Material
Foam-Iu-Place 5% Recovered Material
Qlass Ridge Foem " 6% Recoversd Material
Phenolic Ridge Foam 5% Recovered Material
Rock Woal : 75% Racovered Material

“Postconsumer Recoversd Paper” is defined as “Any paper, papetboard, and fibrous wastes fram retail stores, office
buildings, homes and so forth, after they have passed through their end-usage as & consumer item including;
used corrugated boxes, old newspapers, old magazines, mixed waste paper, tabulating cards, and used cordags,
as well as afl paper, paperboard, and fibrous wastes that enter and are collected from municipal solid waste.”

‘ /
“Recovered Material” is defined as “Waste material and bifproducts which have been recovered or diveried from
solid waste, but such term does not include those materials and byprodusts generated from, and commonly
reused within, an original mamufacturing process,”
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EXAIBIT A-2
LUBRICATING OILS

All lubricating oil provided by the Coniractor and sold to the Commonwealth must have a
minimum re-refined oil content of twenty-five percent (25%). “Re-refined oil” is defined as
“Used oil from which the physical and chenucal contaminants acqmred through previous use
have been removed thtcugh a refining process.” :
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EXHIBIT A-3
SELECTED PAPTERS AND PAPER PRODUCTS

Minimum Mindmam Minimum
Percentage of Percentage of Pereentage of
Recovared PoptConsumer  Secondary Waste
Materials Recovered Paper
Materials
News Print 40
High Grade Bleached Printing and Writing Bapars;
Offzet Printing ‘ 20 B0
Mimeo and Dupligator Paper 30 50
Writing {(Btationexy} 20 50
OFffice Paper (e,y. Note Pade) 20 50
Paper in High-Spesd Copiars 30 '
Envelapes ' 20 50
¥orm Bond Including Computer Paper and : 20
Carbonyls
Book Papers 20 50
+ Bond Papers ’ 20 3]
Ledger 20 50
Cover Stock . 20 5O -
Co%tton Fiber Papers 20
Tigeue Produsts:
roilst Tissue 20
Paper Towels 40
pPaper Napkine 30
Faaizl Tissue ic
Dollies 40
Unbleached Packaging:
Corrugated Boxes 35
Flber Boxes 35
Brown Pzpers (e.g., Baga) 5
Recycled Paperboard:
Recyeled Paperbhoard Products Including
Folding Cartong - ag
Pad Backing a0

*Postoonsurrier Recovered Malerlal" Is defined as "Any product generated by a business or consumer which has sarvad is
intendsd end use, and which has been separated or divarted from solid waste for the purpose of collection, recyaiing, and
dlsposltion, The term includes industrial by-products that would otharwise go to disposal or processing facilities. The term
does not include Internally generated screps that are cornmonly returned to industal or manufaciuring processes,”

*Seoondary wastepaper” s defined as "Paper waste generated after the completion of a pape[making process (that is, those
manufacturing operafions up te and inciuding the cuiffng and trimming of the paper machine reel info smaller rolis or rough
shests), such as postoonsumer waste material, envelope cuttings, bindery trimmings, piinfing waste, cuttlng and ather
convertlng waste, butt rolls and mill wrappers. it doas not include fibrous waste generated during the manufacturing process,
such as flbers recovered from waste water or timmings of paper machine rofls, fibrous by-products of harvesting, extractive
or woodeutting process, or forest residue such as bark."
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NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants contained herein, the-
parties hereto have caused this Rider to be executed.

FOR PRUDENTIAL INSURANCE COMPANY
Federal ID Number 22-1211670

BymﬁgliM/m bri ks
President or Vice President (Date) /xo /oo '

AFFIX CORPORATE SEAL BELOW:

" FOR THE ?W%H OF PENNSYLVANIA: ,
4/22 2000
ate)

Duectp(r, eau of Risk and Insurance Managemet
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APPENDIX I

Foreword ST

. We are pleased fo present you with this Bookiet. It describes the -
Program of benefits the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and Prudenial
have arranged for you and Whaf you have to do 1o be covered forfhese

benefits, )

We believe this Program prowdes won‘h while pmfec:z‘;on for you and your

family. _

Please read this Booklef carefufly. - you havg_ nguestions abouf the

Program, we will be happy fo-answer them. &g ’g . L
£t document and

IMPORTANT NOTICE: This Bookiet is an Importah
should be kept in a safe place. This Book %andf%e Cerifficate ofF -
th

Coverage made a part of this Bookiz%f’é%e rm your Grolp .
Insurance Certfficate. Sign your naﬁggm the space below when Jou:-

receive this Booklet,

P E ey
e it
B e
. 3 po
FL T
Aﬂ% ¥

S;gnature of Empfojf@g,ﬁ £

N - I - S %
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| Schedul'e_df Benefits .-~ -

Cavered Classes: The "Covered Classes” undsr this schedule are ffizse Employees of the Confract.
" Holder (and its Associated Agencles): All Parmanent Employees, other than Employees classified by

ths Contract Holder as Turnpike Commission Employees, Employees of the House of

Representafives, Judiclary, certaln Employees of the Senate, certain Empioyees of the State System

of Higher Education, or Unlversity Presidents.

The Covered Clagses for the. Empioyee Work Refated Accidental Death Cdverage do not inc;Iude
Employees ciassified as Public Safety Workers (Law Enforcement, Firefighters, Emergency Squads).

Regardless of any provisions of this Booklet to the contrary, each i;mployee who was coverad for life’
insurance benefits offered by the Contract Holder and who was disgBled prior to July, 1, 2000, and  *
remains classified by the Contract Hoider as disabled for purposesrof g‘r”é‘up ife Insurance, shall be
considered a Covered Person, &k ‘f ﬁ

’ . ey v .
The Caontract Holder decldes which Employees will be Goverad Pers:s;w fid forhow long, In doing
this, the Contract Holder must nat dlscriminate among persons In fike g filiations. '

Program Date; July 1, 2000. This Booklet desoribss,
Program Date.

» IR

*  This Booklet and the Cerificate of Gavef;éﬂgeg 'qgeti;'er form your Group Insurance Certificate, -+ °
The Coverages in this Booklet are insured i@%&i G’ﬁ",g@Contract issued by Prudential, Al _—
henefits are subjectIn evary way fo the enifra@;ﬁ@;&faﬁonﬁact which Includes the Group !

Insurance Cerfificate, Tha Group Cnntﬁ%}_g;_g ofg{0Tkes the agreement under which payment of

insurance is made. ) ﬁgﬁ?

EMPLOYEE TERM LIFE COVERREE,, * - ) I
BENEFIT AMOUNTS: . e :

; s
Amount For Each Benefit Gégs‘s: S

Banefit Classes

a

Al EMIDIOVEEE, cvrvvseersssesnmsemserseesseionneeonoe AT} @MIOLAE 2QUA 0 the lesser of (1) and (2):

(1) 100% of your base pay rate annualized. If this amaint is
not a muliiple of $1,000, it wiil be rounded to the nearer
muliple of $1,000; an amount of $500 wilf be rounded

. . : . :
(@) $40,000. .

To Whom Payable: Bensfils that hacome payable on ascount of your death will be paid o your
Beneficlary or Beneficiaties.
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I
Effect of Option to Accelerate Paynment of Death Benefits: If you are eligible for and elect the
Option o Accelerate Payment of Death Benefits, your amount-of insurance will be reduced by the
amount of any Terminal liness Proceeds paid.

Amount Reduction Based on Age: An empioyee’s Insurance will be reduced op his or her 70 and
75" birthday In aceordance with the schedule belaw to 65% or §0% of the amount that would have
been in effect without & reduction. ‘ :

The belay af Effecfiva Date section dogs not appiy to this provision.

“Age : ‘ Percent
. 70 85
f 75 and above ‘ ' B0

If your amaunt of insurance fs reduced under this pravision, you m%ffﬁf'?én\?ért the amount of the
reduction fo an individual ffe insurance contract  The same rules mqyjt‘i cofiyersion period death benefit
. - . i i T
apply for the reduction amount as would epply if you had ffanﬁe%%ﬂ;gz,@ﬂf aés;;rgVered Class,
| - | w@% 4
EMPLOYEE WORK RELATED ACG[DENTAL.I'.&EQTH C% ;E%AGE
37

E

BENEFIT AMOUNTS: .

Amount For Each Benefif Class: $10,000. - £ e
To Whom Payable: Benafiis that become payabtp%n:ﬁﬁéﬁm of your death will bé paid to your
* Beneficiary or Beneficiaries. . : Gy ‘"‘"‘E\%y

OTHER [NFORM_AT!ON' B
Gontract Holder: COMMONWEALTH OF PENNS)LVANIA

i
b b=t Tt
Ry 5| JE-;E.‘}(P

Group Contract No,: EG-81475-PA Wi,
\E‘-“i:?"! 1

i, 4
Associated Agencies: Associaﬁﬁ;.ger‘f‘%,s;are Indapendent agencies of the Commonwealth of
Pennsyivania that parficipate igﬁfp&i‘g{%’z&iif&g}asurance pragram and are reported to Prudential in

writing for inclusion under ihe{@‘rfoqpi ohitact, provided that Prudential has approved such-request,

- g
Gt

A
her

Employment Waiting Perfod: 83780 day walting period from yaur inltiel date of employment
with the Confract Holder or with an Asettiated Agency befora any Coverage In this Certificaie fakes
sifact. Ary leave withoutpay during this 80 days will extend your eff_ective date by the number of

days of such leave.

Your Employer will inform you: of any exceptions to the Employrment Walting Petiod for your class. -

Cost of the Insuranee: The Insurance in this Bocklet is Non-confributory [nsurance. The entire cost
without benefits and chooss to continue your coverage by paying the premfum, . )

4

f

BSB 1009

0
M

of the Insurance is being pald by the Contract Holder, except when you are-on [eave without pay '(‘f" },( o ol M\}) (g

it

83500 ‘
. . (8-3)(91475-LIAD)
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i’rudential's Address:

The Prudential Insurance Company of Ame;rica
290 West Mount Pleasant Avenue

Livingston, New Jersey 07039

WHEN YOU HAVE A CLAIM

Each fime a claim is made, It should be made without dzlay. Use & elaim farm, and follow: the
instructions on the form.

If you do not have a ¢laim form, contact Prudenttal.

83500

BSB 1009 . (S-3)(1475-LAD)
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APPENDIX.I

Who is Eligible to Become Insured

FOR EMPLOYEE INSURANCE

You are eligible for Employes Insuranoce whife:
* You are a permaneni Employes of the Emplayer; and
*  Youarein a Covered Class; and

*  You have completed the Employment Waiting Period. E} .

Your class Is datermined by the Contract Holder, This will be de CA! i itsyfhles, on dates it sets.
The Contract Holder must not discriminate among persons in lke's € éi@nﬁm’%u ¢an belong to more
than one class for insurance, but benefits are limited to Coverage of the.sé‘jalss with the higher amount

based on your employing agency. e

‘ﬂ

oy, 4P
This applies it you are an Employee of mare than one.em fﬁ'?gn[ncluded under the Grotp :
Confract: For the insurance, your salary from both ¢ pﬁayers willti’conskdered In caleulzating your
benefit but will be lImited o the maximum coverage g the de‘.-?:qployer in the class with ths higher
amount 5

When You Becom:@“

FOR EMPLOYEE INSURANCE
Your Emiployee Insurance unde;{gg
*  Youare in a Coverad Class fortlj_ﬁ&?lsurance and

* Yourlnsurance Is not baing delayed under the Delay of Effsctive Date seelion below; and

*  That Coverage s part of the Group Contract.
At any time, the benefits for which yeu are insured are thoge for your elass, unless atherwlse stated,

83500
BEL 1001

(91478) (1-2)
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Delay of Effective Date.

FOR EMPLOYEE INSURANCE

Your Employes Insurance under a Coverage will be delayed If you do not meet the Active Pay Staius
Requirement on the day yaur Insurance would dtherwise begin, Instead, it will begln on the first day
you meet the Aciive Pay Status Requirement and the ofhier requirements for the Insurance. The
sarne delay rule will apply to any change in your Insurance that is subject to this section. If you do not
meet the Active Pay Status Requirement ori the day that change would take effact, it will take effect

on the first day you Test thaf requirement.

83500
BEL 4001

(o34757(1)
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Employee Term Life Coverage:

A. DEATH BENEFT WHILE A COVERED PERSON.
if yoﬁ dls while 2 Oo\rere:d Fersnn, ihe amount of your Empioyee Term Life Tnsurance under this
Coverage is payable when Prudéniial receives writien proof of death.

'B. DEATH BENEFIT DURING CONVERSION PERIOD,
A death benefi is payable under this Section B if you die:

{1} within 31 days gfter you cease to be a Coversd Person; and 4,%
p: Tf? s

(2) while entitted (Under Section C} to convert your Employes 'I‘Esrm Llfa,lhsglance under this
Coverage to an individual contract. . . d@ o i

The amount of the benefit is-equal to the amount of Employee Term L] lhsurance under this
Coverags you were entitled to convert.- It is payable even;f&my did nat_‘épply for conversion, Itls

Coverage, which then ends, to an mdnwdu
required, The reasons are: «"{

{1} Your employmant ends or you traa;pfer cut ol
Iﬁs-njl

rT.,.

(3} Alitermlifed msurance of th Gmup (‘f Er act for your class ends by amendment or othenwise.
Ve Eeen insured for five years for that insurance {or for that

,. ’ .'
Any such conversion fs sub]ect to thE fsst of this Sec’uan C.

Availability: You must apply for the individual contract and pay the first premivm within 31 days after
you oease to be Insured for the Employea Term Life Insurance or 15 days from the date of the

conversion notice, whichever is Jater.

83500 ) ‘ ‘
LRRSOIS (1)
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' (1} conforms to Tile VI of tha Clvil Rights Act of 1984, as amendedL

Individual Contract Rutes: The individual oontréct must conform to the folinwing:

Amount: Noi mate than your Employee Termn Life Insurance tnder this Coverage when your

. insurance ends. But, If It ends hecause all term life instirance of the Group Contract for your cléss

ends, the total amount of individuzl insutance which you may getin place of all your life Insurance
then ending under the Group Contract will not exceed the-lasser of the following:: , ._ . oL

{4} The total amount af all your [f2 Insurancs then ending under the Grotp Confract reduced by the
amolnt of group fife Insurance frem any carrisr for which you are-or becdme eligible within the .

next 31 daye:
(2) $10,000.

Formy: Any form of a Iife Insurance contract thal:

4

sex; and

(2) s one that Prudeniial usually fssues at the age and amouni
. . M vigi

This does not Include term Insurance or a contract with disabilily or sU b

. .

. Pramium: Based on Prudentlal's rate as it applies fo the fe‘i\ffin_ﬂ d amgy‘_@t», and to your class of risk'
3 ¥ - R

and age at the time, i
Effective Date: The end of the 31 day perlod during%u%lch' Bl may =pply for it

| ‘*?aﬁ;‘“%%&% h S
Any dezth bangfit provided under thls 53%5;: ?‘TQ&%& gﬁ'ag%?fs payable according i this section and ‘
ths Bensficiary Rules, - %f% e _

83500
LIF R 5015

41

WPPENDIX I




APPENDIXI

:

OPTI(f}l;l TO ACGELEF’QATE PAYMENT OF DEATH BENEFITS.

Note:

(1} If you elect this aption, the amount of your Employee Tarm Life insurance is reduced by
any payment made under this option.

{(2) Any payment made under this option may be faxable. You aré advised to sesk the help of
a professional tax advisor for assistance with any questions that you may have.

The following is added fo the. Employes Term Life Coverage pravision:
Definitions

*  Terminally Il Employee: An smgloyes whose ife axpectancy [s;6 monihs or jess.

A5
. _ & @&
¢ Terminal liness Pracesds: The amount of Employes Terrgi;%lg;e istrange that you may elect to
place under this opfion. “The Terminal lliness Proceeds are el ﬁg_gg;?}a of the amount in force
an your [ife on the date Prudential receives the proof that you aré@%ii_ié’rminaﬂy Il Employes, but
not more than §20,000, ) o s
Option: if you becoms a Terminally [l Employes whpg;iﬂgurea\igg,}g:{ér the Employse Term Life
Insurance provision or while your death benefit pratgfsﬁ?ﬁ’%%beir%tﬁxtended under the Employee

Term Life Coverage provision, you may elect fo haﬁéih.aﬁ.a Ermingl Ilness Proceeds placed undar this

option subject ta the conditions set forth below.  To'BXer this option, you should use a claim form
and follow the instructions on the form. If you gafiet haveslaim form, contact Prudential. When

payment is made under fis opiion, Prudential w ol'a benefit payment nofice. The notice will
indicate: {1) the amountof your Terminal ]I
Term Life Insurance, If any, that remains ing

Payment of Terminat illness Proce&glsg_wlfyo\ﬁ““ ﬁg&t this option, Prudential will pay the Terminal
Hliness Procesds in ona sum when £1EE ﬁig“'-':@}’ggf that you are & Terminafly Il Employse. Or, you
may efect to have them paid in six squ

‘hl?fﬁzstallments. The first monthly payment wili be due
when Prudentiaf receives proof fhat you's

f 15 Terminally Il Employze. The ather payments are due
on the same day of each laterhent

A ‘
Hlifdenthis provision are payabe o you.

&
To Whom Payable: The beiﬁgsg

1

B
Py

Amount Due But Unpald at YourFaath: If you efect manthly instaliments and you die before all
payments have been made, Prudential will pay your Beneficiary or Beneficiaries defermined under
the Beneficiary Rules for the total of the payments that remaln under this gption, pius whatever
amount is payablz under the balance of the Employee Term Life Coverage.

Condltions: Your right fo be paid under this option is subject o these terms:
{1} You must choose this option In writing in a form that satisfies Prudential.

(2) You must furnish proof that satisfies Prudentiat that your life expectancy is 6 months or less,
including certiiication by a Dostor.

(3) Your Employee Tem Life Insurance must not be gssigned.

83500 ' ' v
LIF T 5008 : o (S-1)(91475-UAD) .
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" (5) You may elect this option only once.

{4) Terminal llness Proceeds will be made availzble fo you ona voluntary basls only. Therefore:

{a) If you are required by law to use this pption fo meet the claims of oraditors, whether in
bankruptsy ar otherwise, you are not eligihle for this benefit.

{b) ¥ you are required by a government agency to use this option in order to apply for, get or
keep & government beneit or enfiflement, you are not eligibie for this benefit,

Effect on Insurance; When you elact this option, the total amount of Employee Temm Life Instrance
otherwise payable on your death, including any amount under an extended death benefit, will be )
reduced by the Terminal lliness Procesds. Also, any amount you colld otherwlse have convarted to
an individual contract will be reduced by the Terminal llness Procesds.

&
& .

A ¥4

83500 , .
LIF T 5008 . (S1)(81475-L/AD)
: 11 '
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APPENDIX X : '
° 2]

Coverage

orin the course of any work for compensatmn with the Employer.

Loss maans lass of life.

A. BENEFITS.

Benefits for acoidental Loss are payable only If all of these cunﬁﬁ;ons are met:
. _— . g7 g
(1) You sustain an accidental bodlly Injury while a Cover Re;gén. i
(3} The Loss resuits directly from accidental injury ar[fs{@ out of{ [Bj' in the course of, any work for
wages ar profit with the Employer. o s, 0
) A3 ar_@\ vy

Lo R
{2} The Loss results directly from that Injury and from no other”

Far the purposes of the Coverage!

{1) Exposure to the slements will be consldggr :
-n!i \.

(2) Htwill be presumed that you have suffere 3‘55 of ﬁ’e if your body has rnot been found within

one year of dlsappearance strand:ga;v,smlﬁﬁ% o‘rsﬁ?reokmg of any vehicle In which you were an

oc:cupant é‘rm%‘ i

'l-v-&ifcr‘_

B. LOSSES NOT GQVEREM‘

| e A5
(2) intentionally seif-inflicied lnﬁ és, or any attempt to Inflict Such Injuries.

(8) Sickness, whether the Loss resuits directly or Indlrectly from the Sickness,

(4) Medical or surglcsl tregiment of Sickness, whether the Losa results dirgetly or Indirgctly from the
treatmant,

(8) Any infection, Bul, this does not lnc[ude.'l
{a) apyogenlc infection resuliing fror an geoldental cut or wound; or
(b) a bacterial infection resulting from accidental Ingestion. of & contarminated substance,

{8) War, orany act ofwar, “War' means declared or undeclared war and includes resistance to
armed aggression.

83500 _
ADD R 8003 12 (91475)

Employee Work Related Accidental Death

This Coverage pays benefits for your accidental Loss that results from accidental Injury arising out of, ©
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(7} An acoident that ocatirs while you are serving on full-time active dufy for mare than 30 days in
any armed forces, But fhis does not include Reserve or National Guard active duty for training.

{(8) Commission of or alfempt to commit a feibny.-

{(9) Being legally Intoxicated or under the Infiuence of any narcofic unless administered or constmed
on tha advice of a Doctor, )

(10) Pardicipation in thess hazardcus'spcrls, except where required by your job duties; scuba diving;
bungee jumping; skydiving; parachuting; hang gliding; or ballooning.

N .
The Clalm Rules and the "To Whom Payable” part of the Schedule of Bensiits apply to the payment
of the benefits,

83500 ] .
ADD R 5003 (91475)
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General Information

BENEFICIARY RULES

The rules in this section apply to insurance payable on account of your-death, when the Caverage
states that they do. Butthese rules are modifisd hy zhy burial expanses rule In the Schedule of
Benefits dnd, if there is an asslgnment, by the Limits on Assignments saction.

"Baneficiary” means a person chosen, on-a form approved by Prudential, to receive the insurance
tengfits, . ' .
&

‘3

Ay

You have the right io choose & Berieﬁciary. -
[ there Is a Beneficiary for the insurance, it is payable to that Bfﬁi ezl J _}émount of insurance.
for which there is no Beneficlary at your death will be payable to thesﬂ‘,rf;; -.ggjgjje following: Your

{a) surviving spouse; (b surviving chfld(ren} in equal shares; (c) survivfhgi;”parents in equal shares;

{d) surviving slblings in equal shares; (e.) e-state.' This ord’gz@_yﬁgifpplyr&uess otherwise provided in

the Assignment Limitations. e, A

You may change the Beneficiary at any time withomgiﬁﬁ“éééjﬁ:f__éent ofthe present Beneficlary. The
Beneficiary change form must be filed through Prugichiial #he change will take effect on the date the
form is signed, but it will not apply to any amuungygﬂﬁf ydential before it recelves the form. -

. %%’Lﬁn s A L i
if there is more than one Beneficlary but the Ben H\fjg__nq@afnrm does not speciiy thelr shares, thay will
share equally, Ifa Beneficlary dies beforeﬁhbqjggéif@gigéﬁ&law's interast will end. It will be shared
equally by any remaining Beneficiaries, uf ;s} e.gl_ﬂ_ggwp__ﬁciary form states otherwise.

T
hly

L

g

5121;;? o

83500 : . o
BEN 5002 ) : ' (91475)
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“your death and, at your death, there is no Beneficiary chosen by the assignee, i wiil be payable to:

"It will not be payable as stated in the Beneflciary Rules.

EFFECT OF GIFT ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS %g%gﬁuse INSURANGE

LIITS ON-ASSIGNMENTS

You may assign your insurance under a Coverage, The following rules apply fo assignments:

{1) Insurance providing accidental death benefits may be assigned only as a gift assignment; {2)
Insurance under any other Goverage may be asslgned eltfier as a gift assignment or &s an
assignment to a vialical.sstilement company. Any rights, benefits or privileges that you have as an
Empioyee may be assigned. This includes any right you havs to choose a Beneficiary or o convert te
another contract of insurance. Prudential will not decide if an assignment does what It is intended fo
do. Prudantial will not be held to knew that cne has been made unifess it or 2 copy is filed with

Prudential. - .
I3

This pamgraf:h applies only to Insurance for whizh you have the right fo choose a Beneficlary, when
that right has been assigned, - If an assignad ameunt of insurance bacomes payable on account of

(1) the dssignee, if iving: or

(2) fthe estats of the assignee, if the assignes is not living.

UNDER ANOTHER GROUP CONTRACT ;
. . K Gy
This Section applies to all Coverages praviding Exi Fioyeeideath benefits. - . -
' B, WD / . ’
IFyou are eligible far insurance under the Grou@f@ﬁ““ TEc mﬁ@he Group Contract's effective date you
wilt have.no rights, benefitsor privileges under BNV d@"_;gage under the Graup Caontract if, on the day

before that date, al the'folowing were truefim, i3
. Tl i,

(1) Youwers Insurad for group life ln'surancé‘iaﬁi"u];%e'r'ﬁn%ther group contract thet covered Employess
_ ofthe Employern oy :

i

e
- :EE_\ l“.r i l:‘iml 2 .
{2) Your graup life insurance under%‘%&;ﬁhﬁeﬁ@ﬁyp contract ended.
ki "; ml' i R .
{3) Animevocable and absol gt assighjyient made by you was in effect. 1t was made before the:
vther contract ended. That assi_é‘iﬁ“@g_.nf@as of all yourrights, beneflts and privileges of the

group life insurance unden ﬂgé{fﬁﬁ'{ér{“" oup contract. Theserrights were owned by the assignee aF |
= ; ' . R .

the assignes’s successor, = aw

The owner of those rights of the group life insurance under the other group contract on the day before
this Group Contract's effective date will be the owner of the rights, benefits, and privileges you would -
have had under a Coverage under the Group Contratt. Thia includas, but is not limited to, any right of
assignment you would have had undsr the Limits on Assignments secfion above. The ferm '
"agsignes” as used In that section ineludes such an owner, -

The term "group fife nsurance”, as used abovs, means only group life insurance provided under a
group coniract in effect on the day before the date the Employer became included under the Group

Contfact.

83500 ' ‘ : S
BAS 1015 : - : (91475) (8-1)
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_DEFINITIONS - )

Active Pay Sfafus Reguirement: A requlrement that you be in an active pay status at the.
. Empioyer's place of business, or at any_other place that the Employer‘s_business requires you io go.

Calendar Year: A year starfing January 1,

Confributory Insiranée, Non-contributory Insurance: Contribulory Insuranee is insurance for ©
which the Contract Holder htas the right to require your confribuitlons, Non-conitibiitory Insurance Is
Insurance for which the Conirast Holder does not hava the right to require your contributions, Except
for insurance continued dus to your jeave without pay withnut benefits, your covaraga is Non-
Contributory Insurance,

Coverage: A part of the Booklet conslsting of:

(1) A benefit page labeled 25 & Covef'age in its iitfe..

{2) Any page or pages that continue the same kind of benefits,, i
(3} A Schedule of Benefits entry aind other bensfit pages or forri[%" !:a'dby

kind of benefits.

|I
Ea¥

Govared Person under a Coverage: An Employse whous insured fo éEmponee Insurance under that
Co\.rerage j; X

Doctor: A ficensed practitioner of the healing arts gt

& L
Employee: A person employed by the Employ_arf%m Iublmﬁslected ofiicials, The term also appljes fo

tivat person for any rights after Insurance endss i

Employee Insurance: Insurance on the pe}rsvi\ﬁ‘

Sickness: Any disorder of Q\é{%ady or rmﬁﬁ of @ Covered Person, but not an Injury; pregnancy of a

Covered Person, including abo o] ,ﬂfm mage or childbirth,

Total Disability; You are T 3
.-iib‘
(1) You are not working at any jOb for wage or profit; and

{2} Due to Slekness, Injury, or bath, you are not able to perform for wage or profit tha matenal and
substantial duties cf any job. _ 3 .

Total and Permaneant Dlsab:llty, You are Totally and Permanently Disabled when:
{1) Totat Disability exists; and ’

{2) YourTotal Disabilily is such'that condition (2) of the “Total Disabllify definition above will be met
for the rast of your lifetime.

You:l An Employee.

83500

BAS 1015 (91475) (8-1)
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GLAIM RULES

Proof of Loss: Prudential must be given written proof of the loss for which claim is made under 2
Coverage. This proof must cover the occtitence, character and extent of that ioss.

When Benefits are Paid: Benefits are paid when Prudential receives wrltten proof of the loss.
Prudential will not have to pay benefits more often than as stated In this Certificats,

Leyal Action: No action atlaw or in equily shali be brought to recover on the Group Contract untit 80
days aftar the written proof desoribed above s furished. No such action shall be brought more than
three ysars after the end of the fime within which proof of oss |s required. a

BOL 5004 ' (93191)
17 . '
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Whén'Your Insurance Ends

EMPLOYEE INSURANCE

Your Emplqyee Insurance under a Coverage will end when the first of these occurs:

*  Your membership In the Goverad Classes for the insurance ends becauss your employment ends
{see below) or for any other reason. :

*  The part of the Group Contract providing the insurance ends,

_End of Employment: For insurance purposes, your employment wjlj;end when you are no langer a
permanent Employse in an active pay stalus. But, under the termsiaf the.Group Contract, the
Contract Holder may consider you as still amployed in the Covea;: d fagses %;@ng certain types of
unpald absences from werk. s e o

Continuation of Covetage Due to Leave or Diszhllity: Eorthe purpgsesTof this contract, active pay
statue will include those perlods of leave during which the Ggiract Holdér continues to make
contributions on behalf of an affected employee, An Emgiog?’é’ﬁ@}]gs__efﬁhverage would end because
they are ne longer in an active pay status {as deﬁnedégéﬁb Y bUdHp’ sonfinuas to be an Employes
within the rules established and so designated ta Pridsntia

i/ the Contract Holder, may continue
thelr coverage under this program by paying the préﬁl

ZEailgre to make fhe required premium
payments by such an Employee will cause coveftge to*elr'fé ‘ :

4
An Employee approved for disabliity life insq;r&ncé shalldlsg be considered to be in an active pay.
status. |fyou are Totally and Permanantl&@;@_@,_jﬂz iihe-ime premium paymants by the Gontract
Hofder would be discontinued, and you subiiftEaliSiaaigty medical proof that your disabilty staried
while you were insured, coverage wiil be exter‘t”&%"&[?‘,?g;he expenae of the Confract Holder for a period

of one year from receipt of such prncgaj 5i bquge_w‘fll"bontin ue for the duration of the disabflily if vou

" later provide satisfactory medlical progtgig ﬁ?lf;iﬁ;éﬁdlsability when requested by Prudential. The
caverage amount extendsd will ba the amgyn for which you were insured on the last date you were
in an active pay status, with sta‘ir_‘_k__gg‘;d Ambug‘;i.hﬁeductinns Based on Age being applied at ages 7¢ and
75. This section will only applff’;u sai;ﬁ%g;g%r’nadical proof is submitted fo Prudential within twelve
months of the last premium payment* E;r}’sact Prudential for the disablllty olaim forms.
. Lo .‘~'- 55

The Gontract Holder decides which:Efipioyees will be Coverad Persons and for how long. In doing '
this, the Contract Holder must not discriminate among persons in like situations.

If you go on leave without pay without banefits o terminate employment, Prudantial will notify you of
your options, if any, to coniinue your insurance. ‘

83500 ' _
BTE 1004 , ; (1-2)
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THE PRUDENTIAL INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA

Emplayes: The Employee whose signature appears on the Foreword in the front.of the Booklet,

Certificate of Coverage

Prudential cartifies that insurance is pravided according to the Group Contract(s) for each Insurad
Empioyee. Your Booklet's Schedule of Benefits shows the Gontract Holder and the Group Contract
Number(s}.

Insured Employee: You are eligible to hacoma insured undar the G::.%up Contract if you are in the |
Govered Classes of the Booklet's Schedule of Beneffis and me ,#ﬁe r.efﬁuirements Iy the Booklat's
Who s Ellgible sectlon. The When You Become insured seatiof éy@ﬁ*&o giet states how and when |
you may become Insured for each Coverage.. Your insurance wilks _“ﬁgl%g the rules in the When
Your Insurance Ends saction so provides. Your Booklet and this Cef&iﬂ,g%‘__ of Coverage together

* form your Group Insurance Ceriificate.

Benaficlary for Employee Death Beneflts: Saa the Bok[f%%‘é‘hg o %g Rules,

gt
4 L

Cweraées and Amounts: The available Goveragnd ambunis of Instranse are described in
the Bookiet, Cad’
i

‘Jﬁi
ek

If you are insured, your Bookiet.and this Cartiffc%g_t @;?:gg:uwfgéh‘ir@ge form your Group insurance
Ceriificate. Together they replace any older boﬂk?é!s%qd certiicates jssuad fo yau for the Coverages

in the Booklet's Scheduls of Benefils. Al Bﬁmeﬁtg"%g;s&gj’ect In every way to the entire Group
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COP Gensus Repoft - Disables

TAGE | GENDER | LIVES | VOLUME
23|F -1 528,000
24|F 3 $66,000
27|M 1 $30,000
27|F 31 §77.000
28lF : 3 $80,000
30|M 1 $24,000
30|F 2 $57,000
31M 1 $30,000
3F 11 540,000
2M 3| $106,000
32|F 2| ' §62,000
33[M 2 $58,000
33{F 1 $40,000
34({M 2 $61,000
34iF 2 $88,000
35/M 1 $50,000
35iF 4] §$113,000
3B 1 $50.000
36|F 3 $75,000
37 M 1 $27,000

. 38]M 2| $130,000
3BiF 1 $28,000
39|M 3i- $105,000
38JF 1 $30.000
40[M 71 $216,000
40|F 2 $58,000
41|M 3 387,000
41|F 1 $23,000
421M 4] $122,000
42|F 4] §$115,000
43|M 9]  $288,660
43|F § »194,000
441M ) n262,000
441F 5| $132,000
45iM 6| . -85151,000
45|F 10}  §265,000

"~ 46|M 3 $83.,0C0
46|F 4|  $127.,000
47IM 12  $332,000
47|F 14| $385,000
481M -17]  $492,000

~ 48|F 9|  §238,000
48|M 5|  §$155,000
491F 18]  $508,000
50|M T T43] T $368,000°
50|F 201 $523,000
51\ 121 $384,000
51|F 251 722,000

- 52|M 23|  $725,000
52|F 25|  §837,000




53|M 26]  $791,000 [
53|F 42| $1,193,000
54|M 25|  $722,000
SilE 33]  $948,000
55| 40| $1,204,000
55|E 43| $1,178,000
56|M 48! $1,636,000
56|F 43| §1,163,000
57 1M _81] $1,903,000
-57|F 41] $1,238,000
_58|M 45| $1,404,000
58(F 48| $1,341,000
59|Mm 87| $1,995,000
5o|E 60] $1,781,000
60|M 54} $4,670,000
50IE 55| $1,571,000
B1|M 66| $1,934,000
B1IF 32 $890,000
- 82|M - 46| $1,447,000
62|F 51 $1,504,000
631N 74| $2,294,000
+ 83JF 64 $1,646,000
64 M 63| $1,828,000
64|F 42| §$1,178,000
65|M 72| $2,714,000
65|F 39| §1,005,000
B61F 52{ $1%,448,000
71N 58] 7,702,000

B7|F 31| $880,000 |-
63[M 52| $1,500,000
68|F 62| 1,608,000
69]M 45| $1,164,000
B9IF 52| 31,456,000
70[M 60| $1,155450
70|F 43}  §721,250
71[M 47| §778,700
71|F 51|  $854,450
73N 27| - $485,550
72|F 35|  $520,750
73|M 51|  $874,300
73[F 42|  $595,400
74/M 44]  $837,200
74IF 44|  $655,200
75|M 30]  §508,400
75(F . 32]  §381,450

T w4 $456,000° )
- 76|F 32|  $350,000
77[M 39|  $452,500
= IF 24| $230,000
78|M 30]  $391,500
Z8IE 15 $163,000




79|M 21 $246,000
79(F 22|  $223,000

' 80|M 15| $194,000
80[F 22 $218,000
81|M 12 $151,000
811F 9 $91,000
82\M 6 $68,000
82|F 4 $37,000
B3|M 4 $53,000
83(F 7 $77,000
84|M 3 332,500
B4F 1 $8,500
B5|M 1 - o.000
85|F 5 $62,500
B6(F 2 $20,500
87IM 1 $13,000
B8|F 1 34,500
B4|F 1 $15,G00
TOTAL ‘ -2,820. | $62,863,200




Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Group Life Insurance Claims

Fiscal Year Claims Vohune
03-04 284 $10,968,160.00
04-05 242 $9,961,567.00

05-06 277 $11475,200.00
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
BUREAU OF PROCUREMENT

HARRISBURG
January 28, 2007
Subject: RFP — Voluntary Benefits
Bid Numbet: CNO0023197
Opening Date/Time: February 13, 2007, 1:30 P.M.
Flyer: Addendum #3

To All Bidders:
Clarifications:

1. Bld Opening is set for February 13, 2007, at 1:30 P.M.; as per Calendar of Events listed on
Page iii of the official RFFP document.

2. The document COPA ~ Group Life Insurance Claims Count which contains the claims count for
the previous three (3} years is attached o this Addendum #3.

3. Updated information from Addendum #2, Quastion #3 is revised to read: "For purposes of
submitting this proposal only, the Offeror should assume that all eligible employees will
participate. The propesal evaluation will be on this basis. If the volume of participating
employees decreases substantially the Commonwealth will consider renegotiating the
premium”. This response aiso applies to Question # 77 & # 150 of Addendum #2.

4. The RFP document has been updated as fo the product request for Long Term Care.
Specifications required are as follows:

Section 10 - Add the following wording:

If proposing Long Term Care Insurance, please include a separate rate quotation for
each Long Term Care plan proposed that reflects a $300,000 guaranteed maximum
funding coverage level. This quotation is in addition to any other coverage levels that the

Offeror wishes to propose.

Section IV-3, d, Plan Designh Requirements -- Add the following wording:

For Long Term Care Insurance, while no minimum plan design has been specified the
Commeonwealth requests that the Offeror include a separate plan design that provides
long-term care insurance coverage in the following settings: 1) nursing facilities (NF) and
2) home care. ‘

5. Qfferor is to review Part 1, Introductory paragraph, especially as it relates to cost information
being contained cnly in the Cost Submiital.

' Except as clarified and amended by this flyer, the terms, conditions, specifications, and

instructions of the invitation to bid and any previous flyers, remain as otiginally written.
Very truly yours,

Sybine M. Shingara

Commodity Specialist:
FPhone: (717} 346-3833
E-mail: sshingara@state.pa.us -




Average Disability Policies

03/04 2,886
04/05 2,886
05/06 2,871

Disability Premium Volume
03/04 $875,384,000 .
04105 $881,178,000
05/06 $877,036,000

Disability Claims Volurme

Number of Claims  Volume Paid
03/04 92 . $2,457,232.66
04/05° 149 $ 3,961,650.00
05/06 112 $ 2,058,065.00
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February 6, 2007
Subject:

Bid Number:
Opening Date/Time:
Flyer:

To All Bidders:

Clarifications:

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
BUREAU OF PROCUREMENT '
HARRISBURG

RFP - Voluntary Benefits
CN00023197

February 13, 2007, 1:30 P.M.
Addendum #4

1. Disadvantage Business Participation:

Offerors submitting proposals for RFP-CN00023197 must provide separote sealed
Disadvantage Business Certification submitials for gach insurance product proposed.

2. Offerors submitting proposals will not be permitted to attend the bid opening on
February 13, 2007.

Any questions concerning this bid direct to; Matthew M, Bembenick via email at

mbembenick@state.pa.us.

Except as clarified and amended by this flyer, the terms, conditions, specifications, and

instructions of the invitation to bid and any previous flyers, remain as originally written.

Very truly yours,

Syline M. Shingara

Syline M. Shingara

Commodity Specialist
Phone: (717) 346-3833

E-mail: sshingara@state.pa.us




RFP—Voluntary Benefits

CN00023197

- Addendum #5




Subject:
RFP Number:

Opening Date/Time:

Addendom:

" To All Offerors:

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
BUREAU OF PROCUREMENT
HARRISBURG

February 8, 2007

RFP — Voluntary Benefits
CN00023197 _

February 23, 2007, 1:30 P.M.
Addendum #5

The Commonwealth of Pennsyivania has elected to extend the proposal due date
for RFP—CN00023197, Voluntary Benefits from February 13 2007 at 1:30 P.M. to
February 23, 2007, at 1:30 P.M.

Offerors wishing a Microsoft Word version of the RFP, please contact Syline .
 Shingara at sshingara@state.pa.us. Pleass note electronic versions of the RFP are subject

to I-29 of the RFP

Smcerely,

Syline M. Shingara

Syliné M. Shingara

Commodity Specialist -
Phone: (717) 346-3833

E-mail: sshingara@state.pa.us
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYL.VANIA .
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES
BUREAU OF PROCUREMENT
HARRISBURG

February 9, 2007

Subject: RFP — Voluntary Benefits

RFP Number: CN00023197 .
Opening Date/Time: February 23, 2007, 1:30 P.M.
Addendum: Addendum #6

To All Offerors:

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has elected to rescind Addendum #4 to RFP
CN00023197 — Voluntary Benefits dated February 6, 2007, ,

Sincerely,

Syline M. Shingara
Syline M. Shingara
Commodity Specialist

Phone: (717) 346-3833
+ E-mail: sshingara@state.pa.us




RFPonluIitary Benefits

CN00023197

Addendum #7
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

BUREAU OF PROCUREMENT
HARRISBURG
February 16, 2007
Subject: ~ RFP - Voluntary Benefits
RFP Number: : CN00023197
Opening Date/Time: February 23, 2007, 1:30 P.M.
Addendum: Addendum #7

To All Offerors:

Potential Offerors submitting proposals for RFP-CN00023197 — Voluntary
Benefits are not inviled to the proposal opening scheduled for Friday, February 23, 2007

~at 1:30 PM. o ,

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at telephone number
(717) 346-3833. ’

Sincerely,
Syline M. Shingara

Syline M. Shingara N

Commodity Specialist

Phone: (717) 346-3833

E-mail: sshingara@state.pa.us
\
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